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January 14, 2015
The Board of Trustees
Little Blue Valley Sewer District
Jackson and Cass Counties, Missouri
Re:

Transmittal Letter, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Dear Trustees:
Our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal years ended September
30, 2014 and 2013 is hereby submitted for your acceptance in compliance with bond
covenants and State Statutes. The sound financial condition of the District is illustrated
by the CAFR.
The District is required to accurately, completely and fully disclose all known financial
information to the best of its belief and knowledge. It is the opinion of the District’s
management that the CAFR meets these requirements by providing standard financial
analyses with data that is substantively and materially correct. Appropriate disclosures
have been made to enable a clear understanding of all financial activities.
The independent certified public accounting firm of Cudney, Ecord, McEnroe & Mullane
L.L.C. has audited the District’s financial statements. The purpose of said audit is to
provide reasonable assurance that the District’s financial statements for the year ended
September 30, 2014, are free from material misstatements. The independent audit
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. When
appropriate, the independent audit included recommendations for improving the financial
management practices, strengthening accountability and increasing conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.
This letter of transmittal complements the Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) which is a qualitative narrative that accompanies the basic financial
statements.
Review of both documents provides a comprehensive and holistic
perspective on the District’s financial position and the financial results from the
District’s operations.
This CAFR covers all financial activity of the District; it does not have any component
units or related entities. Financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis. The
Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict (MBC) and the Little Blue Valley Sewer District
(LBVSD) are each operated as separate cost centers with regard to rate development,

MISSION:

“Our mission is to provide excellent wastewater
services which protect the public health and
improve the environment of our region.”

VISION:
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“The Little Blue Valley Sewer District will be a strong partner in
regional planning and resource sharing, anticipating and
responding to both environmental and economic needs”

income tracking and expenditure recording. The audit report provides the combined
financial data in the body of the document and provides individual cost center (LBVSD
and MBC) financial data in the appendices.
Single Audit
The District’s receipt of federal and state funding during the year necessitated the
preparation of a single audit. The funding involved a direct loan from the Department of
Natural Resources (Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict SRF Loan-EPA funds). The
District provided all required internal controls to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. Internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by the management of
the District. The single audit for this fiscal year provided no material weaknesses in
internal control or significant violations of applicable laws and regulations. This report is
available in the separately issued Single Audit Report.
Profile of the District, Economic Condition and Outlook
The Little Blue Valley Sewer District is a quasi-public agency formed in 1968 by the
Circuit Court of Jackson, Missouri to address water pollution concerns in the Little Blue
River. The purpose of LBVSD is to provide wholesale wastewater services (conveyance
and treatment) for county, municipal and private entities in compliance with federal and
state water quality regulations. In 1992, LBVSD established a Middle Big Creek Sewer
Subdistrict to service additional entities in the Middle Big Creek watershed.
LBVSD is governed by a Board of Trustees (members established by State Statutes and
Bylaws). The organization is self-governing in that customer representatives serve on
the Board of Trustees, the Mayors’ Advisory Board, the Middle Big Creek Sewer
Subdistrict Advisory Board and the Technical Advisory Committee.
LBVSD provides wholesale services to approximately 365,000 people living in 14
different jurisdictions. The District includes portions of Jackson and Cass Counties and
the cities of Belton, Blue Springs, Grandview, Independence, Kansas City, Lake
Tapawingo, Lee's Summit, Raymore, Raytown, and Sugar Creek, the Fort Osage School
District, plus one federal installation, the Lake City Army Ammunition Plant.
The Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict serves the cities of Lee's Summit, Greenwood,
Lake Winnebago, Raymore, and Pleasant Hill, unincorporated Cass County, plus the
Mullendike and Dikeland Sewer Districts. The land area serviced by the District is
approximately 278 square miles and the total land area serviced by the Middle Big Creek
Sewer Subdistrict is 110.5 square miles.
Revenues are primarily derived from user charges with some interest income from
investments. LBVSD has no tax revenues. The annual operating budget for each fiscal
year is proportionally recovered from customers based upon an approved rate
methodology. All customers have service contracts with LBVSD which guarantee use of
the services, payment of allocated charges and ongoing customer financial
responsibilities linked to LBVSD’s debt. This has proven to be a successful governance
and financial model. The organization has a history of solid financial performance with
consistent conformance with regulatory requirements and asset management. LBVSD’s
bond rating by Moody’s is AA-.
An organization of 64 budgeted employees provides administrative, financial, operation,
maintenance, engineering, and technical services required to meet the District’s mission:
“To provide excellent wastewater services which protect the public health and improve the
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environment of our region.” Operations, maintenance, and technical staff are represented
by Teamsters Local Union No. 41. Four of these budgeted positions are committed to the
Subdistrict treatment plant.
Through a comprehensive business strategy and partnership among the Board,
management, and Union, the District is seeking to continuously improve customer
service, productivity, quality of work life, environmental compliance, and cost
competitiveness of District operations.
District finances are currently sound and should continue to remain strong.
Community residential and industrial growth impacts District finances positively. It
also results in increasing service demands, capital costs, and operating pressures.
Planning processes underway at the Little Blue Valley Sewer District are seeking to
balance sustainable growth and development with effective and efficient operation of the
utility, at competitive costs in compliance with regulatory requirements. The financial
plan developed through the Master Plan identifies the long-term costs of the projects
needed to rehabilitate and improve the system.
Wastewater Infrastructure
The Little Blue Valley Sewer District receives wastewater from the customer entities'
collection systems through 37 metering structures or interceptor receiving manholes.
Conveyance systems consisting of gravity sewer lines, pumping stations and force
mains transport customer flows to either the Atherton or Pleasant Hill Wastewater
Treatment Plants. Conveyance pipelines are over 97 miles in length with sizes ranging
from 8-126 inches in diameter.
The Atherton Wastewater Treatment Plant is capable of providing secondary treatment
of 52 million gallons per day (400 million gallons per day peak wet weather flow), which
is predicted to meet service area needs through at least 2020. The recently upgraded
Pleasant Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant, acquired in 2011, is capable of providing
secondary treatment of 2.25 million gallons per day (7.75 million gallons per day peak
wet weather flow).
Significant capital improvements are underway across the entire District to prepare for
future capacity needs, to meet more stringent regulatory standards, and to replace
aging infrastructure.
The Atherton plant capital improvements are funded by
$118,350,000 Build America revenue bonds issued in 2010. Within the Subdistrict the
interceptor expansion, pump station upgrades, and Pleasant Hill plant improvements
are funded with the $37,850,000 Missouri State Revolving Loan issued in 2011. A longterm financial forecast has been developed which includes rate increases to meet debt
service, changed operating costs and debt coverage requirements. These capital
improvement funds will be used to complete the following work:
Atherton Wastewater Treatment Plant: Construct ultraviolet disinfection facilities,
intermediate pumping station, new centrifuge system, replace/expand sludge
incineration unit, build ash holding basins, construct upstream excess flow holding
basin and related appurtenant work and other identified wastewater treatment needs.
Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict:
Construct advanced treatment facilities
(disinfection, filtration and reaeration) at the Pleasant Hill wastewater plant with design
capacity of 2.25 million gallons per day, construct approximately 8 miles of new
interceptor sewer line and related appurtenant work and improve the Greenwood
Forcemain.
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Financial Information
The District’s management has established and maintained strategic, master, operational,
and financial plans, budgets, and an internal control structure designed to ensure that
District assets are properly used for intended purposes, protected from loss, theft or
misuse, managed, and maintained. The District employs appropriate accounting practices
to manage, control and report its financial activities in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.
Budgeting Process:
The budget process incorporates performance-based budgeting
concepts. General and specific outputs and outcomes are linked with funding levels to
establish accountability and measurement. The resulting budget document contains:
Strategic goals, objectives, and policies
Communication tools regarding progress on long-range goals, strategies, and
objectives
Operational guidance to define how planning drives the budget and the means by
which performance is measured and reported
Annual and long-term financial plans guiding resource allocations
General Operating Functions
The District conveyed and treated 12,852 million gallons of wastewater during the 20132014 fiscal year at the Atherton Wastewater Treatment Plant. The solids that were
disposed of either by incineration or landfill totaled 7,195 dry tons at this same location.
The Subdistrict treated 306 million gallons of wastewater for the same period.
The District bills its metered customer entities on normalized flow, calculated on the last
20 quarters of actual flow data, and on budgeted expenses. The cost per million gallons
using this method was $1,904, because flow was projected at 10,697 million gallons. The
Subdistrict customers are billed based on the number of their retail customer counts, with
the monthly charge per retail connection being $32.50 in 2014. Following is a comparison
of budgeted amounts by type used for billing purposes:
User Costs for District
Operations and Administration
Debt Service
Debt Reserves
Rehabilitation & Replacement
Total Cost
Projected Million Gallons (MG)
Per Year Cost per MG
Operations and Administration
Debt Service
Debt Reserves
Rehabilitation & Replacement
Total cost per MG
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Budgeted
FY 13-14
$11,427,491
5,859,672
2,154,742
926,000
$20,367,905

Budgeted
FY 12-13
$ 10,930,928
5,388,308
2,020,704
926,000
$19,265,940

10,697

15,453

$ 1,068
548
201
87
$ 1,904

$ 707
349
131
60
$ 1,247

Debt Administration
The Board of Trustees of the District is authorized to issue revenue bonds to finance the
construction of the sewer system by a 75% majority vote of the 14 customers; the 2010
Build America Bonds were approved by a 79% majority. The Middle Big Creek Subdistrict
may issue debt by a vote of the qualified electorate of the Subdistrict, the 2011 revenue
bonds being approved by a 72% majority.
All District bonds are payable from the revenues derived from customers. There are no
limits upon the debt the District may issue; the controlling factor is customer affordability.
The retail wastewater rates continue to be within a range deemed affordable.
Cash Management
In compliance with the District’s Strategic Plan financial policies, the District prioritizes its
cash management and investment activities pursuant to the following objectives:
1. Safety – preservation of capital through careful selection and diversification
of investment vehicles;
2. Liquidity – the availability of cash when needed without the risk of interest
forfeiture which would occur by the forced premature conversion of a term
investment; and
3. Yield – the attainment of a market rate on interest consistent with the
requirements of safety, liquidity, and consistent with cash flow
characteristics and legal constraints.
Available cash is invested in compliance with state statutes and requirements of the
District's bond covenants in instruments such as:
certificates of deposit,
treasury bills,
other instruments backed by the full faith and credit (guaranty) of the United
States of America, and
Short-term high rate commercial paper.
Risk Management
The District purchases commercial insurance coverage for risk of loss related to torts,
property damage, boiler and machinery, flood, combined liability, excess liability, public
official performance, public entity fiduciary liability and crime, errors and omissions, and
employee injuries. These policies balance risk with cost consistent with industry
practices. Claim activity in 2014 did not include any abnormal amounts and no claim
settlements in the last three years have exceeded coverage limits.
The District’s Strategic Plan supports a proactive loss prevention program with
appropriate leadership, empowerment and resources. Risk management responsibilities
span all Departments and include all levels. A continuing and high priority is placed upon
a safe work environment, compliance with standards and conformity with best practices.
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
Awards
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Little Blue
Valley Sewer District for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013. This was the 26th consecutive year that the District has
achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.
In addition, for fifteen consecutive years the GFOA has presented a Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award to Little Blue Valley Sewer District for its annual budget. In order to
be recognized, the budget must be a policy document, an operations guide, a financial
plan, and a communications device; said criteria being applicable to this document. It is
expected to receive this additional award for the current budget documents.
The District is active in various professional organizations, prepares published technical
papers and frequently makes technical presentations at state/national conferences.
Acknowledgments
The preparation of this report was made possible by the dedicated support of the Board of
Trustees and service of staff members of the Little Blue Valley Sewer District. The District
expresses appreciation to those members who contributed to its preparation, and to the
firm of Cudney, Ecord, McEnroe and Mullane L.L.C. for performance of the annual audit
and their assistance in preparing this report.
Respectfully submitted,
LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT

Greg Boettcher
Executive Director

Karen Wardle
Director of Finance
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Cudney, Ecord, McEnroe

&

Mullane L.L.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Little Blue Valley Sewer District
Independence, Missouri
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Little Blue Valley Sewer
District (the District) as of and for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related
notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Little Blue Valley Sewer District as of September 30, 2014
and 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, thereof for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Change in Accounting Principle
As discussed in Note 12 to the financial statements, in 2014 the District adopted GASB
Statement No. 65, Items Previously Recognized as Assets and Liabilities. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis as listed in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Little Blue Valley Sewer District's basic financial
statements. The introductory section, supplementary schedules, and statistical section as listed in
the accompanying table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplementary schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary schedules are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 14, 2015, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

January 14, 2015
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LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
Little Blue Valley Sewer District’s (District) financial performance for the fiscal years
ending September 30, 2014 and 2013 has been summarized and analyzed by
Management to provide a narrative overview and insight into its financial activities.
Included in the discussion are references to significant events, both historical and
forthcoming, that have an influence on the financial performance of the District. This
discussion and analysis is complimentary to and should be read in conjunction with the
other financial data which includes, but is not limited to; the transmittal letter, financial
statements and financial notes. The District also reports separate financial information
for its Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict (Subdistrict) which is included in the
Supplementary Data.
HIGHLIGHTS (Combined Financial Report of District and Subdistrict)
2014 Financial Highlights:
Total assets on the Statement of Net Position decreased $8.9 million, which was
primarily due to the depreciation of capital assets. The decrease in restricted
investments was driven by the spending down of proceeds from the 2010 bonds
which were used to finance additions to construction in progress involving the
Phase II construction at LBVSD and Phase I improvements being undertaken at
MBC.
Total liabilities on the same statement decreased $8.6 million due to pay down of
long term debt and due to other governments, plus the decline in construction
payables.
An additional $2.4 million was drawn on the 2011 Direct Loan for continuing
construction in the Subdistrict.
Total expenses decreased $1.8 million compared to the prior year. This was due
to an increase in the amount of interest capitalized on bond financed capital
improvements, which offset an increase in operating expenses.
Total revenues increased overall $986,302 based on programmed user fee
increases of $1,245,566; while revenue growth offset the decline in investment
income of $198,002.
The fiscal year 2014 year impact of the Federal
Government’s sequestration decreased the interest subsidy on the 2010 Bonds by
$61,262, this deficit being made up from the capitalized interest funds.
2013 Financial Highlights:
Total assets on the Statement of Net Position increased $5.9 million overall
primarily due to the result of the continued capital asset activity funded by
restricted investments from 2010 bond proceeds and 2011 loan draws.
Total liabilities increased $9.1 million due to additional loan draws from the State
of Missouri 2011 bonds, (Missouri Direct Loan Program for the Subdistrict) and
increased construction contracts and retainage payables.
Total net position decreased $3.3 million over the prior fiscal year.
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Total expenses decreased slightly by $283,244. An increase in operating and
maintenance costs were offset by a reduction in interest expense on scheduled
long term debt and an increase in the amount capitalized on constructed assets.
Total revenues increased overall $936,247 based on programmed user fee
increases of $1,475,396; said revenue growth offsetting the decline in investment
income of $416,577.
Subdistrict’s favorable financial position enabled early retirement (1-year) of the
purchase note held by the City of Pleasant Hill for the acquisition of land and the
Pleasant Hill Treatment Works.
2014 District Highlights:
Portions of the Phase II improvements at the Atherton Wastewater Treatment
Plant neared completion. These included the effluent UV disinfection process,
new ash holding basin, and laboratory improvements.
Construction and installation continued on the centrifuge system, new
incinerator, and the excess flow holding basin.
Upgrade and reconditioning of two gravity belt concentrators at the Atherton Plant
location.
Continued televising interceptor sewer mains to determine pipeline conditions.
Elevator modernization was completed at the Atherton raw wastewater pump
station building.
Construction continued on the addition of approximately 7.5 miles of interceptor
lines and modifications to the pump and lift stations in the Subdistrict.
Subdistrict award of $150,000 contract for design, construction administration
and inspection services relating to rehabilitation of the Greenwood Forcemain.
2013 District Highlights:
Construction continued on the Phase II improvements of the Atherton Wastewater
Treatment Plant which includes installation of an incinerator, addition of effluent
disinfection process, and new ash holding basins with $37 million paid to date on
construction and engineering contracts totaling $70 million.
Award of $8.7 million contract for an 84 million gallon excess flow holding basin
as final element of Phase II Improvements Program.
Continual repairs and maintenance of equipment.
Completion of Phase I improvements at the Pleasant Hill wastewater treatment
plant for the Subdistrict at a cost of $14 million to expand and upgrade its
operational capacity to 2.25 million gallons per day, including ultraviolet
disinfection.
Subdistrict Award of $13 million contract for the addition of approximately 7.5
miles of interceptor lines and modifications to pump and lift stations.
CONTENTS OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT
This annual report consists of three parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Basic
Financial Statements, and Supplementary Data. The Basic Financial Statements section
also includes notes that explain in more detail some of the information in the District’s
financial statements.
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Basic Financial Statements:
The basic financial statements of the District report information about the District using
accounting methods that conform to generally accepted accounting principles and are
similar to those used by private sector companies. These financial statements offer shortterm and long-term financial information on the District’s activities. The Statement of Net
Position includes all District assets, deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities, as well
as providing information about the nature and amounts of investments in assets and
liabilities. This Statement also provides information necessary to evaluate the District’s
rate of return, capital structure, and assess its liquidity and financial flexibility.
Revenues and expenses are reflected in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position. The statement reports the financial results from the District’s
operations and illustrates the District’s recovery of costs through wastewater treatment
user fees and other charges, the District’s financial stability, and the District’s merit of
credit standing. The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the District’s
cash receipts and cash disbursements during the reporting period. The Statement of
Cash Flows identifies changes in the District’s cash position resulting from operating,
investing, capital and related financial activities.
DISTRICT FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:
The significant changes in the District’s financial position during 2014 and 2013 were
primarily the result of continual capital activity of $37 million financed by the issuance of
long term debt in 2010, draws of the 2011 Direct Loan and the corresponding spending of
$40 million in investments restricted for capital use.
There have been $79 million in contracts awarded from proceeds of the $118.3 million
Taxable Sewer System Revenue Bonds (Build America Bonds – Direct Pay) Series 2010.
These bonds were issued to construct Phase II of the District’s Master Plan. Phase II
improvements include the construction of a new sewage sludge incinerator, centrifuge,
ash holding basin, and UV disinfection facilities at the Atherton wastewater treatment
plant site, and an excess flow holding facility in the conveyance system. The remaining
proceeds of this bond issue are being used as a debt service reserve and to pay capitalized
interest until December 2014. The Federal Government’s sequestration activity has
reduced the interest subsidy on the Build America Bonds, such shortfall being currently
covered by the capitalized interest funds.
The 2011 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds of $37.85 million under the State of Missouri
– Direct Loan Program finances construction of improvements to the Pleasant Hill
Treatment Facility, improvements to lift and pump stations, installation of 39,000 feet of
interceptor line, and improvements to the Greenwood forcemain all located in the Middle
Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict.
The change in net position shown below is within planned and budgeted expectations in
line with the master plan and the ongoing major construction projects within the District
and Subdistrict.
Tables 1 and 2 on the following page summarize the combined financial position and
results of operations and changes in net position of the District and Subdistrict.
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TABLE 1
Capital assets
Current and other assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Long-term debt
outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

2014
$222,085,521
123,411,474
$345,496,995
$
19,299

2013
$194,084,723
160,331,923
$354,416,646
$
21,385

2012
$156,782,795
191,549,307
$348,332,102
$
23,471

$212,256,740
61,197,916
$273,454,656

$215,277,064
66,806,501
$282,083,564

$210,546,378
62,353,584
$272,899,962

$ 45,823,640
16,854,272
9,383,726
$ 72,061,638

$ 47,732,051
17,332,629
7,289,787
$ 72,354,467

$ 50,656,141
16,208,198
8,591,272
$ 75,455,611

The decrease in total assets and current and other assets in 2014 primarily reflects the
depreciation of capital assets and the use of the capitalized interest fund and invested
bond proceeds which were used to increase the investment in construction in progress.
Total liabilities for the same period decreased $8.6 million due to substantial payment of
principal on the 2004 and other revenue bond obligations of $5.3 million which more
than offset the $2.4 million of draws on the 2011 Direct Loan. Also, due to other
governments declined $2.1 million due to scheduled reductions in the bond reserve
accounts and construction payables declined $3.5 million due to nearing the final year of
the contracts.
Total liabilities increased in 2013 due to continuing bond draws of $9.2 million received
from the 2011 State of Missouri Direct Loan program and a $7 million increase in
construction and retainage payables. A reduction in total liabilities of $6.8 million
occurred as a result of scheduled payments of long term debt, payments due to other
governments, and early retirement of the loan from Pleasant Hill.
TABLE 2
2014
Operating revenues:
User fees
Other
Interest subsidy
Investment income
Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance
Administrative and general
Depreciation and amortization
Unbilled charges
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense
Total expenses
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year
Net position at end of year

2013

2012

$ 23,832,264
73,270
2,526,733
2,600,490
$ 29,032,757

$ 22,595,948
64,020
2,587,995
2,798,492
$ 28,046,455

$ 21,120,552
51,814
2,722,773
3,215,069
$ 27,110,208

$ 10,098,895
1,784,843
8,875,073
763,320
22,269
7,781,186
$ 29,325,586
(292,829)
72,354,467
$ 72,061,638

$ 9,408,525
1,719,076
8,942,509
666,639
0
10,410,850
$ 31,147,599
(3,101,144)
75,455,611
$ 72,354,467

$ 8,488,212
1,943,257
8,884,428
545,239
0
11,569,552
$ 31,430,688
(4,320,480)
79,776,091
$ 75,455,611

The 2014 Revenues by Source graph shown below reflects total revenues of $29,032,757,
along with a percentage breakdown of the sources. The increase of $986,302 in operating
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revenues in fiscal year 2014 compared to 2013 was due to planned increases in
wastewater treatment user fees covering debt service and operating expense purposes.
Investment income was down $198,002 in 2014 due to the spending of bond proceeds,
but was less of an impact than realized in fiscal year 2013. The Federal interest subsidy
received for the 2010 Build America Bonds program was less than anticipated at the time
of bond issuance due to continuing sequestration by the Federal Government. Also,
Subdistrict customer revenues rose due to a 3% increase in rates for anticipated
additional operating and rehabilitation reserves, and a slight growth in the area

Interest 21.9%

2014 Revenues by Source
Total Revenues: $29,032,757
Other 0.2%

Wastewater
Treatment Fees
77.9%

Total revenues of $28,046,455 for 2013 along with a percentage breakdown of the
sources are presented in the following graph. The operating revenues in fiscal year 2013
were greater compared to 2012 due to planned increases in wastewater treatment user
fees for debt service, contributions to the debt reserve fund, and operating expenses. The
interest subsidy was received under the Build America Bond program on the 2010
Revenue Bonds, but was less than expected due to impacts from the Federal
government’s sequestration. Also, as long term investments from 2010 bond proceeds
matured that had previously earned higher interest rates they were replaced with lower
yielding shorter term investments resulting in the decline of investment income.

Interest 19.2%

2013 Revenues by Source
Total Revenues: $28,046,455
Other 0.2%

Wastewater
Treatment Fees
80.6%
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The Expenses by Source graph for 2014 shown below reflects the total expenses of
$29,325,586, a decrease of $1,822,013 when compared to 2013 expenses. The 2014 total
expenses decreased 6.3%, mainly due to a reduction in interest expense of $2.6 million
on long-term debt as a result of lower principal outstanding and an increase in the
amount capitalized on assets being constructed. Administration and General expenses
were slightly higher due to being fully staffed for the entire fiscal year and payment of
associated employee benefits. Pension payments to a defined benefit plan are fully
funded by the District and these rates increased. In addition Operation and Maintenance
costs rose by $690,370 due to repairs of aging equipment.

The Expenses by Source graph for 2013 shown below reflects the division of total
expenses incurred. The total expenses of $31,147,599 decreased slightly by $283,089
compared to 2012 expenses. The 2013 total expenses were .90% less mainly due to
interest expense decreasing on outstanding debt as a result of scheduled reductions and
an increase in capitalized interest on construction assets. Savings were realized in
Administration and General expenses in payroll and related employee benefits due to
reduced staff levels, and lower legal and consulting fees and risk insurance premiums. In
comparison, Operation and Maintenance expenses were higher due to increased
replacement parts and repairs for equipment, increased use of chemicals and greater
electrical usage. Additionally, unbilled charges were higher due to repairs of pumps and
televised sewer inspections.

2013 Expenses by Source
Total Expenses: $31,147,599
Operations &
Maintenance
30.1%

Interest 33.3%

Administration &
General 5.5%
Deprec &
Amortization
29.1%

Other Charges
2.1%
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets:
At the end of fiscal year 2014, the District’s net capital assets, totaling $222 million, are
in land, buildings, equipment and sewer plants, as well as construction work in progress.
Assets increased $28 million mainly due to continuing construction work at the Atherton
Treatment Plant, work on the excess flow holding basin located in the conveyance system,
and expansion of the conveyance system in the Subdistrict. The changes are presented
in detail in Note 4 to the financial statements.
In 2013 the District invested a net $37.3 million in construction in progress, capital and
rehabilitation and replacement projects for total net capital assets of $194 million. The
projects included Phase II construction work at the Atherton treatment plant and in the
Middle Big Creek Subdistrict. Improvements at Atherton include a new incinerator,
centrifuge, disinfection facilities, ash holding basin, and conveyance excess flow holding
basins. The Subdistrict work includes expansion and construction of the treatment
facilities, pump station improvements, and expansion of the conveyance system.
Table 3 summarizes the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for the years
ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
TABLE 3
Land
Sewer plant
Buildings
Vehicles, furniture and fixtures
Construction work in progress
Net capital assets

2014
$ 5,876,131
124,427,434
256,490
196,884
$130,756,939
91,328,582
$222,085,521

2013
$ 5,876,131
132,671,928
272,726
215,321
$139,036,106
55,048,617
$194,084,723

2012
$ 4,560,944
125,942,111
293,008
126,777
$130,922,840
25,859,955
$156,782,795

The District’s 2015 capital budget plans include an additional investment of $11.8 million
in capital improvement and rehabilitation and replacement projects. Planned projects
include the continuation of construction work of Phase II at the Atherton plant
expansion, the Subdistrict interceptor expansion and meter station upgrades,
rehabilitation work on a headwork’s screen, replacement of plant influent gates and lake
sluice gates, numerous mechanical improvements in the blower room, at yard hydrants,
sludge wetwells, and pressure regulators, installation of chopper pumps and bypass line
at potable water meter vault, rebuilding raw pump #6, replace programmable logic
controllers and computerized maintenance management systems at the Atherton plant
site, design and initiate construction of a new Administration and Employee Facility at
the Atherton plant site, and annual televised inspections within the District. These
projects will be paid with District capital, rehabilitation and repair monies, as well as
proceeds from both the 2010 and 2011 bond issues.
Debt Administration:
The District’s total outstanding debt at the close of fiscal year 2014 was $212.2 million
compared to $215.3 million in 2013. The $3 million decrease reflects the receipt of $2.4
million in loan draws of the 2011 revenue bonds from the State of Missouri Direct Loan
Program less debt payments for the fiscal year.

24

Total outstanding debt as September 30, 2013 was $215.3 million. The receipt of $9.2
million in loan draws on the 2011 revenue bonds from the State of Missouri Direct Loan
Program less debt payments of $4.5 million in the fiscal year increased outstanding debt.
Interest subsidy payments were reduced by 8.7% on the 2010 Build America Bonds by
the Federal Government due to sequestration for their fiscal year ending September 30,
2013.
In December 2010 the District issued $118,350,000 taxable sewer system revenue bonds
(Build America Bonds – Direct Pay) with a maturity date of 2040. Interest subsidy
payments received from the Federal Government at time of issuance was equal to 35% of
the amount of each interest payment. However, due to sequestration this subsidy has
been reduced. These bonds are rated Aa3 and AA- by Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s,
respectively. In February 2011 new debt was also issued for $37.8 million as sewerage
system revenue bonds (State of Missouri – Direct Loan Program) Series 2011A at an
interest rate of 1.66% with a maturity date of 2032.
The revenue bonds identified in Table 4 include two issues that were secured through the
Missouri Department of Natural Resources State Revolving Fund Program. An $89
million issuance occurred during fiscal year 2003 for Phase I of the plant improvements
and matures in 2024. The 1995 bond issuance of $11 million matures in 2016. These
monies were used to build force mains and pump stations in the Middle Big Creek Sewer
Subdistrict. More detailed information about the District’s long-term debt is presented in
Note 5 to the financial statements.
TABLE 4
Revenue Refunding Bonds
Revenue Bonds and Direct Loans
Premiums, refunding deferrals
Total Outstanding Debt

2014
$
95,000
210,973,451
1,188,289
$ 212,256,740

2013
$ 1,770,000
212,161,181
1,345,883
$215,277,064

2012
$ 3,270,000
205,772,901
1,503,477
$210,546,378

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES
The District faces many of the same issues as other sewer systems in the nation,
including complying with new government mandates concerning advanced air emissions
control to meet stricter EPA regulations for sewage sludge incinerators, protection of
water quality by disinfection, and the prospect of ever more stringent effluent limits
particularly with ammonia removal requirements.
There is an ongoing need for
rehabilitation or replacement of infrastructure along with expanding capacity to address
future growth.
The District and Subdistrict’s Master Plans include detailed forecasts which provide the
framework for infrastructure improvements scheduling, rate increases, financial
sustainability and integrated planning. The District’s five-year Financial Plan is updated
annually including the predictions for operating expenditures and revenue requirements.
The District has continued to meet financial forecasts through responsible revenue
enhancement and expenditure control. The District strategies are reviewed and updated
on a continuing basis.
Phase II of the Atherton wastewater treatment plant improvements financed by the 2010
Build America bonds, are on schedule for final completion in 2015. A new Administration
and Employee Facility building to be constructed at the Atherton wastewater treatment
site is currently under design with construction to be completed in 2016. The interceptor
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improvements and expansion in the Subdistrict are slated for completion in late 2015 and
are funded with the State of Missouri 2011A Direct loan.
The District’s approved methodology for calculation of rates for District billings is based
on a five-year normalized flow that includes fixed costs, as well as volume related costs,
for customers. Billings are based on the approved budgeted figures and forecasted flow
volumes, not actual costs and flows; thereby eliminating revenue volatility. The District’s
financial model not only provides stability for the District’s revenues, such methodology
also assists the customer cities in preparing their own budgets as each customer’s service
costs are fixed for coming fiscal year. The Subdistrict bills its customers monthly on a set
charge of $32.50 per connection count for 2015 with explicit requirements regarding
customer reporting and elimination of connections. All District customers have entered
into service agreements which require the exclusive use of the District’s services for the
duration of capital program indebtedness. Such agreements between the District and its
customers provide revenue protection for the District and its bondholders.
The District’s 2015 budget is $21,580,319 representing a 5.95% increase attributable to
greater operating costs, upgraded treatment levels, and debt service. An additional $3
million is projected for rehabilitation and replacement projects. The Subdistrict’s budget
is increasing 4.38% to $4,630,211 due to increased plant operating costs and debt
service. By necessity, portions of these budgets have been developed using engineering
data and with only one full year of operating data from the recently expanded Subdistrict
plant to use in budget calculations.
Portions of the District treatment plant
improvements are nearing completion. However, the budgets must still be identified as a
first-year best estimate budget which can be subject to cost variances, expense over runs
and expense under runs. Operations of the new facilities as they come on line will: (1)
require experimentation, (2) involve learning from mistakes, and (3) take time for process
optimization in the transition from old to new operating state. Such one-time challenges
are particularly present at the Atherton treatment plant, creating a set of dynamics that
will require greater budget flexibility. These budgets are based upon sound judgment and
responsible estimates, and believed to provide the resources necessary to achieve
regulatory compliance, maintain asset condition, protect water quality, serve an
expanding customer base, provide expanded service area and comply with the District’s
financial obligations.
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide stakeholders with a general overview of the
District’s finances and to demonstrate its accountability for the monies received. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, you may
contact Executive Director, Greg Boettcher; boettcher@lbvsd.org or Director of Finance,
Karen Wardle; wardle@lbvsd.org located at 21101 E. 78 Highway, Independence, Missouri
64057, or telephone (816) 796-7660 extensions 123 or 135, respectively.
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Exhibit A

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2014 and 2013
2014
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments (Notes 1 and 2)
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Inventory
Restricted assets (Note 3):
Cash and investments
Investments (Notes 1 and 2)
Interest receivable
Due from other governments (Note 6)
Total current assets

$

18,102,588
5,219,821
1,391
345,480
125,382

2013

$

14,635,527
5,047,022
1,368
296,901
222,972

7,271,484
5,100,006
20,493
210,561
36,397,206

10,810,836
4,538,757
17,994
210,561
35,781,938

27,127,705
58,971,869
639,859
86,739,433

32,558,031
90,934,268
782,851
124,275,150

274,835

274,835

5,876,131
91,328,582
124,880,808
222,085,521

5,876,131
55,048,617
133,159,975
194,084,723

Total noncurrent assets

309,099,789

318,634,708

Total assets

345,496,995

354,416,646

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets (Note 3):
Cash and investments (Notes 1 and 2)
Investments (Notes 1 and 2)
Interest receivable
Total restricted assets
Due from other governments (Note 6)
Capital assets (Notes 1 and 4):
Land and improvements
Construction in progress
Other, net of accumulated depreciation
Capital assets (net)

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding

19,299

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Construction contracts, retainage payable and other
Compensated absences
Due to other governments
Interest payable
Current maturities of revenue bonds (Note 5)
Total current liabilities

345,516,294

$

354,438,031

$

426,806
6,961,727
73,213
2,685,239
1,694,012
4,547,594
16,388,591

$

462,786
10,426,252
67,041
2,261,000
1,721,211
5,422,594
20,360,884

Noncurrent liabilities (Note 5):
Revenue bonds
Due to other governments
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for renewal and replacement
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

$

207,709,146
48,581,646
775,273
257,066,065

209,854,470
51,172,395
695,815
261,722,680

273,454,656

282,083,564

45,823,640
2,485,482
2,664,227
11,704,563
9,383,726
72,061,638

47,732,051
2,535,332
2,938,499
11,858,798
7,289,787
72,354,467

345,516,294

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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21,385

$

$

354,438,031

Exhibit B

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating revenues:
Wastewater treatment user fees
Other

Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance
Administrative and general
Depreciation and amortization
Unbilled charges (Note 9)

Operating income
Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest expense
Interest subsidy on revenue bonds (Note 5)
Investment income
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year (as restated)
Net position - end of year

2014

2013

$ 23,832,264
73,270

$ 22,595,948
64,020

23,905,534

22,659,968

10,098,895
1,784,843
8,875,073
763,320

9,408,525
1,719,076
8,942,509
666,639

21,522,131

20,736,749

2,383,403

1,923,219

(7,781,186)
2,526,733
2,600,490
(22,269)

(10,410,850)
2,587,995
2,798,492
-

(2,676,232)

(5,024,363)

(292,829)

(3,101,144)

72,354,467

75,455,611

$ 72,061,638

$ 72,354,467

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Exhibit C

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013
2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for employee services and benefits
Other cash receipts

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

23,755,633
(6,787,492)
(5,653,905)
77,492

2013
$

11,391,728

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Payments on intergovernmental advance
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Interest paid on revenue bonds
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Principal paid on plant acquisition
Interest subsidy on revenue bonds
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Proceeds from the sale of investments
Purchases of investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

10,433,314

(2,261,000)

(1,851,500)

2,402,270
(12,476,771)
(5,265,000)
2,526,733
828
(35,963,517)

9,243,280
(12,444,972)
(4,355,000)
(632,498)
2,604,332
(37,320,569)

(48,775,457)

(42,905,427)

3,053,360
31,438,693
(349,941)

3,614,411
46,713,624
(411,250)

34,142,112

49,916,785

(5,502,617)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

22,295,661
(6,387,482)
(5,537,093)
62,228

15,593,172

58,004,394

42,411,222

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

$

52,501,777

$

58,004,394

Cash and cash equivalents included in:
Unrestricted cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

$

$

$

18,102,588
34,399,189
52,501,777

$

14,635,527
43,368,867
58,004,394

$

2,383,403

$

1,923,219

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Inventory
Accounts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

8,875,073
(172,799)
(48,579)
97,590
171,410
85,630
$

Noncash investing activities:
Change in fair value of investments

$

11,391,728
(145,849)

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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8,942,509
(299,692)
(16,100)
(9,684)
(4,586)
(102,352)
$
$

10,433,314
(141,408)

(This page left blank intentionally.)
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LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2014 and 2013
1.

Description of Enterprise and Accounting Policies and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of the District
Little Blue Valley Sewer District (the District) is a body corporate and politic
organized under the laws of the State of Missouri. The District is governed by an elevenmember Board of Trustees which by statute includes the Jackson County Executive, one
Jackson County Legislator who is appointed by the Jackson County Executive, the
Presiding Commissioner of Cass County and eight mayors from municipalities serviced by
the District.
The District was organized to construct and operate a system of wastewater
treatment facilities, interceptor sewers, and branch interceptor or trunk sewer connections
in parts of Jackson and Cass Counties, Missouri. Grants received from the United States
government and the State of Missouri paid up to 90% of the construction cost. The
remaining cost was financed with local grant contributions and proceeds from revenue
bonds.
In October 1992, the District took control of the operations and maintenance of
Middle Big Creek, which provides wastewater treatment service to rural communities in
Jackson County and Cass County, Missouri. In December 1992, the net assets
representing cash of $105,409 were contributed to the District, and Middle Big Creek
became a subdistrict of the District, a separate geographic area served by the District.
Service contracts with the municipalities authorize the District to finance and
construct certain sewer system components for the treatment and disposal of sewage
delivered by these municipalities to specific locations along the District's system. Fees
charged the municipalities are to provide sufficient revenues to the District to pay the costs
of operation and maintenance of the system in each year, have "net revenues" from the
system to pay principal and interest on all District bonds issued to finance the common
sewer system, as defined in bond resolutions, and make payments to certain funds
required by the bond resolutions. The service contracts restrict the ability of the user
municipalities to acquire any vested rights in the assets of the District; and the user
municipalities are not permitted to construct, grant, franchise or license a competing
sewage treatment works without the consent of the District. The District's consent may be
given only if it is not economically feasible to furnish the desired service and the competing
facilities will not substantially impair repayment of the District's outstanding revenue
bonds, except as provided by law.
Reporting Entity
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the District's financial
statements include its component units if certain criteria regarding financial or operational
relationships are met. Based on the evaluation criteria, the District has no component
units.
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1.

Description of Enterprise and Accounting Policies and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of Accounting and Budgeting
The District accounts for its operations as a governmental enterprise fund which is
accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the use of the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual method of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred.
According to the District's bond covenants, the District operates under an annual
budget which provides for reasonable and necessary operating expenses. The budget is
approved by the Board of Trustees. The District must prepare a preliminary budget and,
not less than sixty days before the beginning of the year, hold a public hearing at which
any authorized representative of the municipalities may appear and present any objection
the municipalities have with respect to the preliminary annual budget. The budget is
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, modified to include capital asset purchases
and inventory purchases as expenses. In addition, certain trustee fees have been excluded
from budgeted expenses. Although the annual budget serves as a management plan and is
not a legally adopted budget, it must be approved by the Board of Trustees with any
subsequent revisions to the budget also approved by the Board.
If the budget for the ensuing year exceeds the prior year's budget by more than 8%,
and if, prior to October 1 of the ensuing year, the municipalities individually or collectively
present a statement of reasons as to why the proposed budget is, in the municipalities'
opinion, unreasonable and unnecessary, the statement shall be forwarded to all users each
of which may submit its own such statement. The original statement of reasons shall be
promptly referred to an arbitrator mutually agreed by the District and the user that filed
the original statement of reasons. The arbitrator may determine the controversy based
upon the evidence produced. In every event, the decision will be rendered by October 1 of
that year or the proposed budget shall automatically become the annual budget upon
approval of the Board of Trustees. After the budget has been approved, it can be amended
by the Board of Trustees. There is no specific amount by which the District can exceed the
budget except that the District must maintain reasonable and necessary operating
expenses.
Operating Revenues and Expenses
The treatment user fees charged to the user municipalities in the Middle Big Creek
Sewer Subdistrict (the Subdistrict) are based upon the number of connections to the sewer
system. The fees charged to all other user municipalities are based upon rates which are
calculated using volume factors as well as fixed costs as defined in service contracts. These
revenues are used as security for the District’s revenue bonds. Operating expenses include
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying statements of cash flows include
cash and investments (including restricted assets) with original maturities of ninety days or
less. In 2014, it was determined that the guaranteed investment contracts should be
classified as investments instead of cash equivalents. As a result of this change in
classification, the 2013 beginning cash equivalents were reduced by $57,174,019.
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1.

Description of Enterprise and Accounting Policies and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments
As permitted by GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, the District reflects money market
investments with a maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase and
nonparticipating investment contracts at cost or amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. All other investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices.
Inventory
Inventory is valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out
method.
Capital Assets
Capital assets consist of property, plant and equipment. These assets are recorded
at cost for items purchased or constructed. Contributed assets are recorded at fair value
on the date received. Engineering costs are allocated on a specific-identification basis. The
capitalization threshold is $10,000.
Costs which significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. All other
repair and maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows: sewer plant, ten to seventy-five years; administration building, forty
years; furniture and fixtures, ten to twenty years; transportation equipment, three years.
The interest cost of borrowed funds used to finance construction projects is
capitalized when material. Interest earned on the proceeds of tax-exempt borrowing
arrangements restricted to the acquisition of qualifying assets is offset against interest
costs in determining the amount to be capitalized. $4,498,128 of interest was capitalized
in 2014, and $1,917,611 of interest was capitalized in 2013.
Deferred Outflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position now reports a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This financial statement element represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The District has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category, the deferred amount on refunding. A deferred amount on
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its
reacquisition price and is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded
or refunding debt.
Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities and is classified
as either: net investment in capital assets, which consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowings used for
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets, net of unspent proceeds of
$42,673,136 in 2014 and $79,163,261 in 2013; restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation
or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
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1.

Description of Enterprise and Accounting Policies and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
other governments; and unrestricted for net position that does not meet the definition of
net investment in capital assets or restricted.
Compensated Absences
Permanent, full-time employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of eight hours for
each full month. Sick leave can be accumulated without limit. Up to 50% of sick leave
earned will be paid to employees at the time of termination. This liability amounted to
$362,767 and $315,999 at September 30, 2014 and 2013 respectively, and is included in
other accrued liabilities.
Employees of the District accrue vacation at the following rates based upon length
of continuous service:
Years of Service
Completed

Monthly Accrual
Rate

Maximum Total
Days Per Year

0-4
5-9
10-14
15-19
20+

5/6 day
1-1/4 days
1-2/3 days
2-1/12 days
2-1/2 days

10
15
20
25
30

Employees may accumulate vacation up to a maximum of 720 hours, which is
payable upon separation from employment. Accrued vacation as of September 30, 2014
and 2013 was $438,786 and $404,231 respectively, and is included in other accrued
liabilities.
Bond Premiums, Discounts and Issue Costs
Bonds payable are reported net of any premiums and discounts, which are
amortized over the life of the applicable bonds using the straight-line method which
approximates the effective interest method. Issuance costs are recognized as an expense in
the year incurred.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.
2.

Deposits and Investments
A summary of the carrying values of deposits, investments and petty cash at
September 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
Total deposits
Total investments
Petty cash

$

Total

2014
139,679
116,433,473
500

$116,573,652
36

$

2013
43,677
153,433,242
500

$153,477,419

2.

Deposits and Investments (continued)
The deposits, investments and petty cash are reflected on the statements of net
position as follows:

Cash and investments
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Investments

$

Total

$

2014
18,102,588

$

2013
14,635,527

34,399,189
64,071,875

43,368,867
95,473,025

116,573,652

$ 153,477,419

Investment Policies
The District deposits and invests all monies as allowed by state statute, its investment
policies, and in accordance with bond indentures. State statutes allow the District to deposit
in open accounts and certificates of deposit. While state statutes allow the District to invest in
direct obligations of the United States of America and obligations which are unconditionally
guaranteed by or secured by obligations of the United States of America, all of the District’s
investments are currently subject to the provisions of the various bond indentures as
described below.
The 2004 Refunding Series, 2010 Series and 2011A Direct Loan bond indentures
generally restricts investing to cash, certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury securities, U.S.
government agency securities, money market funds (rated AAAm-G, AAAm or AAm by
Standard and Poor’s and Aaa, Aa1 or Aa2 by Moody’s), commercial paper (rated A-1 or better
by Standard and Poor’s or P-1 by Moody’s), state and local government bonds (rated in one of
the two highest categories by Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s), repurchase agreements, and
guaranteed investment contracts acceptable to the bond insurer.
The 2003 Revenue and 1995 Subdistrict Revenue bond indentures currently require
that the monies in the restricted accounts must be invested in the guaranteed investment
contracts specified by the bondholder, the State Environmental Improvement and Energy
Resources Authority. Other permitted investments under the indentures include cash,
certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury securities, fully guaranteed U. S. government agency
securities, money market mutual funds (rated in the highest category by Moody’s), direct and
general obligations of the State of Missouri (rated in the two highest categories by Moody’s),
and guaranteed investment agreements with a provider whose obligations are rated at least Aa
by Moody’s.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will be
unable to fulfill its obligations to the holder of the investment. It is the District’s policy to
minimize credit risk by prequalifying the financial institutions and others with whom the
District will do business and by diversifying the portfolio so that potential losses on individual
fixed income securities will be minimized. Credit risk can be measured by the assignment of a
rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The guaranteed investment
contracts are not rated.
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2.

Deposits and Investments (continued)
Presented below are the ratings as of year end for each investment:
Investment
United States Treasury Notes
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp
Commercial Paper:
Lexington Parker Cap Co LLC
Crown Point Cap Co
Fidelity Treasury Money Market Fund
Federated Prime Obligation Money Market Fund
Federated Treasury Obligation Money Market Fund
Guaranteed investment contracts (2003 series):
Trinity Plus Funding Co LLC
Guaranteed investment contracts (1995 series):
AIG Matched Funding Corp
Trinity Plus Funding Co LLC
Repurchase agreement
Certificate of deposit

Carrying Amount
$
10,395,982
33,294,822
11,248,931
1,309,814

Rating
Aaa
AAa
AAa
AAa

% of Total
8.93 %
28.60 %
9.66 %
1.12 %

349,837
349,837
483,156
27,706
218,749

P-1
P-1
Aaa-mf
Aaa-mf
Aaa-mf

0.30
0.30
0.41
0.02
0.19

$

51,913,921

-

1,687,851
24,121
5,078,746
50,000
116,433,473

-

%
%
%
%
%

44.59 %
1.45
0.02
4.36
0.04

%
%
%
%

Custodial Credit Risk
The custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of a depository financial institution or counterparty, the District will not be able to
recover its deposits, investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. For deposits, the District follows state statutes which require pledged collateral
with a fair value equal to 100% of the funds on deposit, less insured amounts. As required by
District policy, investments are held in the District’s name, currently by the bond trustee in
accordance with the bond indentures, and the securities underlying the repurchase agreement
are held by the District’s agent in the District’s name. The District’s investment policy does
not limit the holdings of any one counterparty.
At September 30, 2014, the District’s deposits were either insured by Federal
depository insurance or fully collateralized by securities held by the District’s agent in the
District’s name.
Interest Rate Risk
The District’s investment policy limits maturities to five years as a means of managing
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. To minimize the risk of
loss, the District matches investments to anticipated cash flows and diversifies the investment
types to the extent practicable. The District has elected to use the segmented time
distribution method of disclosure for its interest rate risk.
As of September 30, 2014, all of the District’s investments had maturities of less than
one year with the exception of the guaranteed investment contracts and the United States
Treasury Notes. The Treasury Notes mature in one to five years, the 2003 Series contracts
end on January 1, 2024, and the 1995 Series end from July 2016 to January 2019.
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2.

Deposits and Investments (continued)
Concentration of Credit Risk
The District’s policies and bond indentures do not limit the amounts that can be
invested with any one issuer. Investments that represent more than 5% of the District’s
investments are listed above under Credit Risk.

3.

Revenue Bond Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets
District’s Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets
Certain provisions of the District's bond covenants provide for the segregation of assets
into accounts and funds and restrictions are placed on their use.
The 2004 Refunding Series, 2003A Series and 2010 Series bond covenants require that
as long as any of the bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the District is to maintain the
accounts and funds listed below:
2004 Series


The Debt Service Account is used to accumulate amounts sufficient to meet the
annual principal and semi-annual interest payments of the applicable bonds and the
fees of the Trustee, the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar.



The Bond Reserve Account is for payment of principal and interest on the bonds to the
extent monies are not available in the Principal and Interest Account. The District, as
authorized by the Resolution that issued the 2004 Refunding Bonds, has obtained the
Surety Bond of MBIA Insurance Corporation in place of fully funding the Bond Reserve
Account.



The Rehabilitation and Replacement Account is to accumulate monies to be used to
pay the costs of unusual or extraordinary replacements and repairs of major items of
the System. The account shall not be used for extending or enlarging the System and
must maintain a minimum $1,000,000 balance.



The Capital Improvement Account, established within the Revenue Fund, is to provide
for the estimated cost of budgeted capital projects for the extension, enlargement,
improvement or replacement of the System.



The Revenue Fund is used for all remaining monies. These monies remain in this fund
or within a separate account authorized by the District for the purposes specified by
the bond covenants.

2003 Series


The Construction Loan Fund is assigned to the bondholder, the State Environmental
Improvement and Energy Resources Authority, to secure the District's obligations
under this Bond Resolution. Funds are disbursed to the District to pay the cost of
extending and improving the System. At September 30, 2014, all funds had been
disbursed from this account.



The Reserve Fund is funded by an advance from the State of Missouri in an amount
up to 70% of the outstanding bonds.
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3.

Revenue Bond Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets (continued)


The Debt Service Fund receives funds from the Principal Account and Interest Account
which are used to pay the principal and interest on the bonds. There was no required
balance for this account at September 30, 2014.



The Principal Account is used to accumulate amounts sufficient to meet principal
payments of the applicable bonds.



The Interest Account is used to accumulate amounts sufficient to meet interest
payments of the applicable bonds.

2010 Series


The Debt Service Account is used to accumulate amounts sufficient to meet the
annual principal and semi-annual interest payments on each payment date.



The Debt Service Reserve Account is for the payment of principal and interest on the
bonds to the extent monies are not available in the Debt Service Account. The reserve
requirement of $9,982,763 was funded with bond proceeds.



The Project Account is used to pay the costs of the project and the issue costs of the
bonds. The bond resolution also established a Capitalized Interest Subaccount within
the Project fund to be used solely to pay the interest on the bonds during the
construction period. This subaccount was funded with $21,090,682 of bond proceeds.
Any amounts remaining in the subaccount upon completion of the project are to be
transferred to the Debt Service Account.

At September 30, 2014, the District’s assets under these bonds are classified as follows
and consist of cash, investments, interest receivable and due from other governments:
District's Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets
Due From
Interest
Other
Investments
Receivable
Governments

Cash
2004 Series:
Revenue
Capital Improvement
Debt Service
Rehabilitation &
Replacement

$

2003 Series:
Reserve
Principal
Interest

2010 Series:
Debt Service
Reserve
Project
Capitalized Interest

District Total

$

20,574
-

$ 16,217,047
197,273
63,281

6,541

11,938,982

27,115

$ 16,513,847
197,276
63,307

1,214

-

11,946,737

11,946,737

28,416,583

2,634

274,835

28,721,167

12,207,320

-

49,639,888
1,972,500
301,533

570,098
17,593
1,296

-

50,209,986
1,990,093
302,829

50,209,986
1,990,093
302,829

-

51,913,921

588,987

-

52,502,908

52,502,908

18
-

12
10,395,983
17,069,727
2,404,974

47,011
962
211

210,561
-

210,573
10,442,994
17,070,707
2,405,185

210,573
10,442,994
17,070,707
2,405,185

18

29,870,696

48,184

210,561

30,129,459

30,129,459

27,133

$ 110,201,200

485,396

$ 111,353,534

$

1,391
3
26

639,805

$

Restricted

274,835
-

40

$

Total

$

$

$

197,276
63,307

94,839,687

3.

Revenue Bond Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets (continued)
Subdistrict's Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets
The covenants of the Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict Series 1995 and 2011A bonds
provide for the segregation of assets into funds and accounts and place restrictions on their
use. Certain of these accounts are maintained by the District and others are required to be
held by the bond trustee for the benefit of the District. These funds and accounts are as
follows:
1995 Series Subdistrict Accounts Maintained and Administered by the District


The Revenue Fund is the depository for all income and revenues derived and collected
by the District from the operation of the Subdistrict Sewer System. Monies are
allocated from this fund to the following funds and accounts as described below in
accordance with the bond indenture.



The Subdistrict Operation and Maintenance Account is used to pay current expenses.



The Subdistrict Emergency Repair Account, which must maintain a $15,000 balance,
is used for making repairs and replacements, as necessary, to keep the system in good
repair and working order.



The Subdistrict Capital Account is used for paying additional current expenses of the
system, extending, enlarging or improving the system, preventing default or increasing
amounts in the Principal Account, the Interest Account, the Reserve Account, the
Subdistrict Operation and Maintenance Account, the Subdistrict Emergency Repair
Account or for calling and redeeming bonds prior to maturity.

Subdistrict Accounts Held by the Trustee for the Benefit of the District
1995 Series


The Construction Account is assigned to the bondholder, the State Environmental
Improvement and Energy Resources Authority, to secure the District's obligations
under this Bond Resolution. Funds are disbursed to the District to pay the cost of
acquiring and constructing improvements to the system. At September 30, 2014, all
funds had been disbursed from this account.



The Reserve Account is funded by an advance from the State of Missouri in an amount
up to 70% of the outstanding bonds.



The Debt Service Account receives funds from the Principal Account and Interest
Account which is used to pay the principal and interest on the bonds. There was no
required balance for this account at September 30, 2014.



The Principal Account is used to accumulate amounts sufficient to meet principal
payments of the applicable bonds.



The Interest Account is used to accumulate amounts sufficient to meet interest
payments of the applicable bonds.
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3.

Revenue Bond Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets (continued)
Subdistrict Accounts Held by the Trustee for the Benefit of the District (continued)
2011A Series


Payments into the Construction Fund are made pursuant to loan draw requests from
the District to the bondholder, the Missouri Department of Natural Resources, to pay
the cost of acquiring and constructing improvements to the system.



The Debt Service Fund receives funds from the Principal Account, Interest Account,
and Capitalized Interest Account which are used to pay the principal and interest on
the bonds. There was no required balance for this account at September 30, 2014.



The Principal Account is used to accumulate amounts sufficient to meet principal
payments of the applicable bonds.



The Interest Account is used to accumulate amounts sufficient to meet interest
payments of the applicable bonds.



The Capitalized Interest Account was funded with $527,000 of District monies and is
to be applied to debt service payments due on December 15, 2013 and 2014.

At September 30, 2014, the Subdistrict's assets are classified as follows and consist of
cash, investments in the State Revolving Fund Program investment contracts and interest
receivable:
Subdistrict's Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets
Due From
Interest
Other
Investments
Receivable
Governments
Total

Cash
1995 Series
Administered by District:
Revenue
Operations & maintenance
Emergency repair
Capital
Administered by Trustee:
Reserve
Principal
Interest

2011A Series
Administered by Trustee:
Principal
Interest
Capitalized interest

Subdistrict total

$

910
21,977
2,233

$

1,476,000
388,057
2,284,993

$

-

$

-

$ 1,476,910
388,057
21,977
2,287,226

Restricted

$

21,977
2,287,226

87,500
426

1,512,000
175,000
24,972

20,359
1,267
312

-

1,532,359
263,767
25,710

1,532,359
263,767
25,710

113,046

5,861,022

21,938

-

5,996,006

4,131,039

-

152,502
58,936
159,813

-

-

152,502
58,936
159,813

152,502
58,936
159,813

-

371,251

-

-

371,251

371,251

-

$ 6,367,257

$ 4,502,290

$ 113,046

$

6,232,273

$
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21,938

$

3.

Revenue Bond Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets (continued)
A summary of the above accounts as reported in the accompanying balance sheet is as
follows:

Cash
District
Subdistrict

4.

Total of Accounts, Funds and Restricted Assets
Due From
Interest
Other
Investments
Receivable
Governments
Total

Restricted

$ 27,133
113,046

$ 110,201,200
6,232,273

$

639,805
21,938

$ 485,396
-

$ 111,353,534
6,367,257

$

94,839,687
4,502,290

$ 140,179

$ 116,433,473

$

661,743

$ 485,396

$ 117,720,791

$

99,341,977

Changes in Capital Assets
Changes in capital assets for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as
follows:
Balance
10-01-13

Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land and improvements
Construction in progress

$

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer plant
Administrative buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Transportation equipment

Less accumulated depreciation:
Sewer plant
Administrative buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Transportation equipment

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

$

5,876,131
55,048,617

Increases

$

36,898,967

Balance
09-30-14

Decreases

$

(619,002)

$

5,876,131
91,328,582

60,924,748

36,898,967

(619,002)

97,204,713

330,890,600
1,402,405
1,750,205
716,623

586,344
33,487

(256,000)
(22,818)

331,220,944
1,402,405
1,750,205
727,292

334,759,833

619,831

(278,818)

335,100,846

(198,218,672)
(1,129,679)
(1,682,172)
(569,335)

(8,806,913)
(16,236)
(12,841)
(39,083)

232,075
22,818

(206,793,510)
(1,145,915)
(1,695,013)
(585,600)

(201,599,858)

(8,875,073)

254,893

(210,220,038)

133,159,975

(8,255,242)

194,084,723
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$ 28,643,725

(23,925)
$

(642,927)

124,880,808
$

222,085,521

4.

Changes in Capital Assets (continued)
Balance
10-01-12
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land and improvements
Construction in progress

$

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer plant
Administrative buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Transportation equipment

Less accumulated depreciation:
Sewer plant
Administrative buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Transportation equipment

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

5.

$

4,560,944
25,859,955

Increases

$

1,315,187
46,277,385

Balance
09-30-13

Decreases

$

(17,088,723)

$

5,876,131
55,048,617

30,420,899

47,592,572

(17,088,723)

60,924,748

315,789,258
1,402,405
1,708,348
660,319

15,608,333
41,857
90,399

(506,991)
(34,095)

330,890,600
1,402,405
1,750,205
716,623

319,560,330

15,740,589

(541,086)

334,759,833

(189,847,147)
(1,109,397)
(1,670,343)
(571,547)

(8,878,516)
(20,282)
(11,829)
(31,883)

506,991
34,095

(198,218,672)
(1,129,679)
(1,682,172)
(569,335)

(193,198,434)

(8,942,510)

541,086

(201,599,858)

126,361,896

6,798,079

-

156,782,795

$ 54,390,651

$ (17,088,723)

133,159,975
$

194,084,723

Revenue Bonds and Long-Term Obligations
In July, 2004, the District issued $10,880,000 in 2004 Series Sewer System Revenue
Bonds. These bonds, together with $2,200,000 of sinking fund monies, were used to advance
refund the $12,755,000 of outstanding 1998 Series Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds
by purchasing U.S. Government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable
trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1998 Series
bonds. As a result, these bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for them has
been removed from the financial statements.
In January 2003, the District issued $88,915,000 Little Blue Valley Sewer District,
Sewer System Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program)
Series 2003. The proceeds, including $2,629,133 of issuance premium, are to be used to
finance the extension and improvement of the sewerage system and complete the required
refunding of the $6,000,000 Sewer System Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund – Leveraged
Loan Program) Series 2002A bond issue. In conjunction with this bond issue, the District
entered into an agreement with the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (DNR) whereby
the State of Missouri will advance monies to establish a reserve account in an amount up to
70% of the outstanding bonds. This reserve account serves as collateral on the bonds in the
event of default. Through September 30, 2014, a total of $ 64,080,892 has been advanced
from the DNR and $14,441,004 has been repaid. This amount is reflected as restricted
investments and as an offsetting liability, due to other governments. Interest earnings on the
reserve fund are credited to the District. As the District makes principal payments on these
bonds, an amount equal to 70% of the principal payment is remitted from the reserve fund to
the DNR.
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5.

Revenue Bonds and Long-Term Obligations (continued)
In October 1995, the District issued $11,290,000 Little Blue Valley Sewer District,
Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program - Middle Big Creek Sewer
Subdistrict Project) Series 1995. The proceeds were used to acquire and construct
improvements to the sewerage system on the Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict including lift
stations, force mains, gravity sewers, pumping stations, treatment facilities, sites and other
related facilities. In conjunction with this bond issue, the District entered into an agreement
with the DNR whereby the State of Missouri will advance monies to establish a reserve
account in an amount up to 70% of the outstanding bonds. This reserve account serves as
collateral on the bonds in the event of default. Since inception through September 30, 2014, a
total of $7,915,569 has been advanced from the DNR and $6,403,569 has been repaid. This
amount is reflected as restricted investments and as an offsetting liability, due to other
governments. Interest earnings on the reserve fund are credited to the District. As the
District makes principal payments on these bonds, an amount equal to 70% of the principal
payment is remitted from the reserve fund to the DNR.
In December 2010, the District issued $118,350,000 of Taxable Sewer System Revenue
Bonds (Build America Bonds – Direct Pay) Series 2010. The proceeds of these bonds will be
used to finance approximately $86 million of improvements to the District’s sewer system,
including biosolids handling, disinfection treatment, and collection system retention basins.
The remaining proceeds will be used to fund a debt service reserve and pay capitalized interest
on the bonds through December 2014. As Build America Bonds under The American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2009, the District will receive a subsidy payment from the Federal
government equal to 35% of the interest paid.
Details of revenue bonds and loans outstanding at September 30, 2014 and 2013 are
as follows:
Revenue Bonds

Interest
Rate

Original
Issue

Maturity

$ 10,880,000

9-01-15

11,290,000

7-01-16

2014
$

95,000

2013

2004 Refunding Series

2.0-4.5%

1995 Series-Subdistrict

4.0-5.625%

$

2003 Series Revenue

2.5-5.25%

88,915,000

1-01-24

68,455,000

70,695,000

2010 Series Revenue

6.2-6.75%

118,350,000

9-01-40

118,350,000

118,350,000

189,060,000

193,965,000

3,775,000

4,905,000

2,160,000

Less current maturities
$

185,285,000

1,770,000
3,150,000

$

189,060,000

Interest on the above revenue bonds is payable on a semi-annual basis.
On March 17, 2011, the District authorized the issuance of Sewerage System Revenue
Bonds (State of Missouri – Direct Loan Program – Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict) Series
2011A in an amount not to exceed $37,850,000, as a result of its participation in the State of
Missouri Direct Loan Program. Under the Direct Loan program, DNR acts as the purchaser of
the bond and loans the District amounts equal to eligible costs related to the project to be
financed with the loan proceeds. The project costs include the construction of improvements
to the recently acquired Pleasant Hill, Missouri treatment facility, improvements to lift and
pump stations, and the installation of approximately 12,000 feet of interceptor line. Interest is
due semiannually, based on the outstanding loan balance. Principal is due semiannually in
various installments through July 1, 2032. Details of the direct loan at September 30, 2014
are as follows:
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5.

Revenue Bonds and Long-Term Obligations (continued)
Interest
Rate

Direct Loan
2011A Series
Less current maturities

$

1.66%

Original
Issue

Maturity

37,850,000

7-01-32

2014

2013

$

22,008,451
615,000

$ 19,966,181
360,000

$

21,393,451

$ 19,606,181

In connection with the project financed by the 2011A Direct Loan, the District
acquired the treatment plant and related land owned by the City of Pleasant Hill, Missouri in
February 2011 for $1,300,094. The purchase price was payable in varying amounts through
July 1, 2015, with interest at .175% due on $254,500 of the purchase price. The remaining
liability for the acquisition was repaid in 2013.
Changes in revenue bonds and other long-term obligations for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
Amount
Balance
10-01-13

Additions

Deductions

Balance

Due Within

09-30-14

One Year

Revenue bonds:
2004

$

1995

1,770,000

$

-

$

(1,675,000)

3,150,000

-

(990,000)

2003

70,695,000

-

2010

118,350,000

-

19,966,181

2,402,270

2011A Direct Loan
Unamortized premiums
Revenue bonds and loans
Compensated absences
Due to other governments
Total

$

$

95,000

$

95,000

2,160,000

1,050,000

(2,240,000)

68,455,000

2,630,000

-

118,350,000

-

(360,000)

22,008,451

615,000

1,345,883

-

(157,594)

1,188,289

157,594

215,277,064

2,402,270

(5,422,594)

212,256,740

4,547,594

762,856

530,555

(444,925)

848,486

73,213

53,433,395

109,239

(2,275,750)

51,266,884

2,685,239

269,473,315

$

3,042,064

$

(8,143,269)

$

264,372,110

$

7,306,046

Amount
Balance
10-01-12

Additions

Deductions

Balance

Due Within

09-30-13

One Year

Revenue bonds:
2004

$

3,270,000

$

-

$

(1,500,000)

$

1,770,000

$

1,675,000

1995

4,085,000

-

(935,000)

3,150,000

990,000

2003

72,405,000

-

(1,710,000)

70,695,000

2,240,000

2010

118,350,000

-

-

118,350,000

-

10,932,901

9,243,280

(210,000)

19,966,181

360,000

2011A Direct Loan
Unamortized premiums
Revenue bonds and loans
Compensated absences
Due to other governments
Total

$

1,503,477

-

(157,594)

1,345,883

157,594

210,546,378

9,243,280

(4,512,594)

215,277,064

5,422,594

710,807

505,998

(453,949)

762,856

67,041

55,930,477

-

(2,497,082)

53,433,395

2,261,000

267,187,662

$

9,749,278
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$

(7,463,625)

$

269,473,315

$

7,750,635

5.

Revenue Bonds and Long-Term Obligations (continued)
The annual requirements to retire the revenue bonds outstanding as of September
30, 2014 are as follows:
Year ending
September 30
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040

$

$

Principal
3,775,000
6,425,000
5,515,000
5,980,000
6,625,000
45,690,000
25,850,000
31,955,000
38,350,000
18,895,000

$

189,060,000

$

Interest
11,322,707
11,052,984
10,703,049
10,404,680
10,080,127
44,432,368
34,829,550
25,876,245
14,323,252
1,275,413
174,300,375

$

$

Total
15,097,707
17,477,984
16,218,049
16,384,680
16,705,127
90,122,368
60,679,550
57,831,245
52,673,252
20,170,413
363,360,375

As of September 30, 2014, the scheduled annual requirements to retire the maximum
2011A Direct Loan principal are as follows:
Year ending
September 30

Principal

2015

$

615,000

2016

595,000

2017

1,833,000

2018

1,883,000

2019

1,933,000

2020-2024

10,482,000

2025-2029

11,969,000

2030-2032

7,970,000
$

37,280,000

As discussed in Note 3, various bond indentures contain limitations and restrictions on
annual debt service requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies through various
restricted accounts, and minimum amounts to be maintained in various sinking funds. These
indentures also require minimum revenue bond coverages. The District is in compliance with
all such financial limitations and restrictions.
In prior years, the District defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new
bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
At September 30, 2014, there are no bonds outstanding which are considered defeased.
The District has no statutory debt limit and all debt financing requires approval of the
District's constituents. Also, the District has not issued any conduit debt obligations.
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6.

Due From Other Governments
At September 30, 2014 and 2013, Due from Other Governments consists of $274,835
due under an agreement for construction cost sharing and $210,561 from the Federal
government for the interest subsidy on the Series 2010 Build America Bonds.

7.

Commitments and Contingencies
Construction Commitments
At September 30, 2014, the District has construction and engineering commitments
outstanding which total approximately $15,300,000, primarily for engineering and
construction services related to the system improvement and Middle Big Creek Sewer
Subdistrict expansion projects. The District expects to receive the majority of the contracted
services in 2015.
Operating Lease
In April 2013, the District entered into an operating lease agreement with the City of
Kansas City, Missouri for the use of approximately 60 acres of land as an excess flow basin.
The initial lease term is for a period of thirty years, with an option to renew for an additional
thirty year period. The future minimum payments will be based on the first year rental
amount of $36,000 and may increase annually by the consumer price index. The rental
expense for 2014 was $36,271. The $1,026,000 of estimated future minimum rentals are due
as follows: $36,000 annually for 2015 to 2019, $180,000 for each five year period through
2038, and $126,000 for 2039 to 2043.
Litigation
The District is involved in various lawsuits and claims arising in the ordinary course of
its activities. These include a claim of approximately $2.6 million for additional costs related
to an ongoing construction contract, and two personnel related matters. While these cases
may have a future financial effect, management, based on the advice of counsel, believes that
their ultimate outcome will not have a material adverse effect on the basic financial
statements of the District.

8.

Employee Retirement System
Plan Description
The District participates in the Jackson County, Missouri Revised Pension Plan (the
Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the County's
Pension Plan Administrative Committee. The Plan provides retirement, disability and death
benefits to all eligible employees. The benefit provisions are provided under the authority of
Revised Missouri Statute Section 50.337. The Plan issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may
be obtained by writing to: Jackson County Courthouse, Finance Department, 415 E. 12th St.,
Kansas City, MO 64106, or by calling (816) 881-3851.
Funding Policy
The District's employees are not required or allowed to contribute to the Plan. The
District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 14.4%
of covered payroll. The contribution requirements of the District are established and may be
amended by the County. The District's contributions to the Plan for the years ended
September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $465,767, $381,101, and $378,260 respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.
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9.

Unbilled Charges
Certain costs of $763,320 in 2014 and $666,639 in 2013 were deemed by management
to be costs not billable to the municipalities. These costs have been classified as unbilled
charges in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

10.

Risk Management
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, loss and damage to
property, errors and omissions, and injuries to employees and currently purchases
commercial insurance coverage for these risks. There have been no changes in insurance
coverage in 2014 and settled claims have not exceeded the commercial insurance coverage in
any of the past three years.
The District is both self-insured and fully insured for employee health care costs.
Claims are administered through a third party administrator for the self-insured plan.
Employer and employee contributions are available to pay claims and costs of an
administrative service agreement. An excess insurance policy covers individual claims in
excess of $30,000. The outstanding claims liability is calculated from historical data and
future expectations. This includes an estimated liability for known claims as well as an
estimated liability for claims incurred but not reported. Incurred but not reported claims of
$96,298 and $86,321 have been accrued as a liability at September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Claims and payment amounts below include the administrative cost.
The changes in the claims liability are as follows:

11.

Beginning liability
Claims and changes in estimates
Payments

$

Ending liability

$

2014
93,964
1,175,242
(1,164,585)
104,621

$

$

2013
70,922
1,097,706
(1,074,664)
93,964

Segment Information
The District has issued revenue bonds to finance wastewater infrastructure projects for
both the District and Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict. The District accounts for all
wastewater activities in a single enterprise fund, but investors in the Subdistrict project bonds
rely solely on the revenue generated by it for repayment. Summary financial information for
the District and Subdistrict is as follows:
District

Condensed Statement of Net Position
Total current assets
Total restricted assets
Total other assets
Net captial assets
Total assets

$

Deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
Total current liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted net position
Unrestricted net position
Total net position

$
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33,067,036
83,564,380
274,835
189,575,485
306,481,736

Subdistrict

$

3,616,140
3,175,053
32,510,036
39,301,229

19,299
306,501,035
13,025,468
233,767,497
246,792,965

39,301,229
3,649,093
23,298,568
26,947,661

38,225,903
13,961,749
7,520,418

7,597,737
2,892,523
1,863,308

59,708,070

$

12,353,568

11.

Segment Information (continued)
District
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position
Operating revenues
Depreciation expense
Other operating expenses

$

Operating income

$

741,966

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Interest subsidy
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

2,466,986
2,526,733
(7,621,567)
(23,097)

Change in net position

(1,908,979)

Beginning net position (restated)

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
Operating activities
Noncapital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

133,504
(159,619)
828
1,616,150
10,737,418

$

59,708,070

$

$

8,803,662
(1,568,000)
(46,555,043)
33,202,257
(6,117,124)

$

Beginning cash and cash equivalents

53,985,554

Ending cash and cash equivalents

$

47,868,430

4,608,740
(907,372)
(2,059,931)
1,641,437

61,617,049

Ending net position

12.

20,440,674
(7,967,701)
(11,731,007)

Subdistrict

12,353,568

2,588,066
(693,000)
(2,220,414)
939,855
614,507
4,018,840

$

4,633,347

Change in Accounting Principle
In 2014, the District implemented GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities. That statement now requires that bond issuance costs, which had been
capitalized and amortized over the life of the related bonds, now be expensed when incurred,
and that the previously capitalized issuance costs be removed from the financial statements.
The implementation of this statement resulted in a decrease to beginning net position
on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as of October 1, 2012 in
the amount of $2,321,660 to reflect the removal of the unamortized balance of the bond
issuance cost asset. Amortization expense that was recognized during the year ended
September 30, 2013 was $159,422.
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Schedule 1

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
MIDDLE BIG CREEK SEWER SUBDISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2014
Little Blue Valley
Sewer District

Middle Big Creek
Sewer Subdistrict

$

$

Internal
Activity

Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Inventory
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Investments
Interest receivable
Due from other governments

16,237,621
5,118,325
1,391
316,217
118,176

1,864,967
387,466
29,263
7,206

$

(285,970)
-

$

18,102,588
5,219,821
1,391
345,480
125,382

6,880,797
4,165,033
18,915
210,561

390,687
934,973
1,578
-

-

7,271,484
5,100,006
20,493
210,561

33,067,036

3,616,140

(285,970)

36,397,206

24,750,012
58,194,869
619,499

2,377,693
777,000
20,360

-

27,127,705
58,971,869
639,859

Total restricted assets

83,564,380

3,175,053

-

86,739,433

Due from other governments

274,835

-

-

274,835

3,853,186
83,524,779
102,197,520

2,022,945
7,803,803
22,683,288

-

5,876,131
91,328,582
124,880,808

Capital assets (net)

189,575,485

32,510,036

-

222,085,521

Total noncurrent assets

273,414,700

35,685,089

-

309,099,789

Total assets

306,481,736

39,301,229

(285,970)

345,496,995

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Investments
Interest receivable

Capital assets:
Land and improvements
Construction in progress
Other, net of accumulated depreciation

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

19,299

-

-

19,299

$

306,501,035

$

39,301,229

$

(285,970)

$

345,516,294

$

385,739

$

327,037

$

(285,970)

$

426,806

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Construction contracts, retainage payable
and other
Compensated absences and other
Due to other governments
Interest payable
Current maturities of revenue bonds

6,219,225
72,347
1,950,239
1,516,222
2,881,696

742,502
866
735,000
177,790
1,665,898

-

6,961,727
73,213
2,685,239
1,694,012
4,547,594

13,025,468

3,649,093

(285,970)

16,388,591

184,175,000
1,030,247
47,798,889
763,361

22,503,451
448
782,757
11,912

-

206,678,451
1,030,695
48,581,646
775,273

Total noncurrent liabilities

233,767,497

23,298,568

-

257,066,065

Total liabilities

246,792,965

26,947,661

(285,970)

273,454,656

38,225,903
198,256
2,080,907
11,682,586
7,520,418

7,597,737
2,287,226
583,320
21,977
1,863,308

-

45,823,640
2,485,482
2,664,227
11,704,563
9,383,726

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Revenue bonds
Unamortized premium
Due to other governments
Compensated absences

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for renewal and replacement
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

59,708,070
$

12,353,568

306,501,035

$

52

39,301,229

$

(285,970)

72,061,638
$

345,516,294

Schedule 2

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
MIDDLE BIG CREEK SEWER SUBDISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Little Blue
Valley Sewer
District
Operating revenues:
Wastewater treatment user fees
Other

Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance
Administrative and general
Depreciation and amortization
Unbilled charges

Operating income
Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest expense
Interest subsidy on revenue bonds
Investment income
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year (as restated)
Net position - end of year

$ 20,367,904

Middle Big
Creek
Subdistrict

Total

4,608,240

$ (1,143,880)

72,770

500

-

73,270

20,440,674

4,608,740

(1,143,880)

23,905,534

1,973,452
92,638
907,372
(6,159)

(1,143,880)
-

10,098,895
1,784,843
8,875,073
763,320

19,698,708

2,967,303

(1,143,880)

21,522,131

741,966

1,641,437

-

2,383,403

9,269,323
1,692,205
7,967,701
769,479

$

Internal
Activity

$

23,832,264

(7,621,567)
2,526,733
2,466,986
(23,097)

(159,619)
133,504
828

-

(7,781,186)
2,526,733
2,600,490
(22,269)

(2,650,945)

(25,287)

-

(2,676,232)

1,616,150

-

(292,829)

61,617,049

10,737,418

-

$ 59,708,070

$ 12,353,568

(1,908,979)
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$

-

72,354,467
$

72,061,638

Schedule 3

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
MIDDLE BIG CREEK SEWER SUBDISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended September 30, 2014

Little Blue Valley

Middle Big Creek

Internal

Sewer District

Sewer Subdistrict

Activity

Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers

$

20,201,652

$

4,687,202

$ (1,133,221)

$

23,755,633

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

(6,156,014)

(1,764,699)

1,133,221

(6,787,492)

Cash payments for employee services and benefits

(5,318,968)

(334,937)

-

(5,653,905)

Other cash receipts
Net cash provided by operating activities

76,992

500

-

77,492

8,803,662

2,588,066

-

11,391,728

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Payments on intergovernmental advance

(1,568,000)

(693,000)

-

(2,261,000)

Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt

-

Interest paid on revenue bonds

(11,739,454)

(737,317)

-

(12,476,771)

(3,915,000)

(1,350,000)

-

(5,265,000)

-

828

-

828

2,526,733

-

-

2,526,733

(33,427,322)

(2,536,195)

-

(35,963,517)

(46,555,043)

(2,220,414)

-

(48,775,457)

Principal paid on revenue bonds
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Interest subsidy on revenue bonds
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

2,402,270

-

2,402,270

Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments

143,162

-

3,053,360

796,693

-

31,438,693

-

-

939,855

-

614,507

-

4,018,840

-

(349,941)

Net cash provided by investing activities

33,202,257

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(6,117,124)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

2,910,198
30,642,000

53,985,554

(349,941)
34,142,112
(5,502,617)
58,004,394

$

47,868,430

$

4,633,347

$

-

$

52,501,777

$

741,966

$

1,641,437

$

-

$

2,383,403

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

7,967,701

907,372

-

79,040

8,875,073

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

(261,098)

9,259

(172,799)

(1,481)

-

(48,579)

97,591

(1)

-

97,590

223,258

(42,589)

(9,259)

171,410

-

85,630

Prepaid expenses and deposits

(47,098)

Inventory
Accounts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

81,342
$

8,803,662
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4,288
$

2,588,066

$

-

$

11,391,728

Schedule 4

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES COMPARED TO BUDGET
For the year ended September 30, 2014
2014
Actual (on a
Budgetary
Basis)

Personal services:
101 Regular salaries
102 Overtime
108 Temporary help
109 Car allowance
121 FICA taxes
122 Employee healthcare
123 Pension
125 Disability
126 Life insurance
131 Physicals/workers' compensation
132 Public education
133 Professional and consulting

$

Total personal services
Materials and services:
201 Motor fuels and lubricants
202 Automotive equipment
203 Equipment
204 Equipment rental
205 Construction supplies
206 Cast iron and steel
207 Small tools and hardware
208 Hoses and rubber goods
209 Electrical supplies and services
210 Instrument supplies and services
211 Chemical supplies
212 Laboratory supplies
214 Other engineering materials
215 Plumbing supplies
216 Painting supplies
217 Safety equipment and services
218 Dumping, trash hauling, grit services
220 Inspections
221 Travel expenses
223 Freight and express (outgoing)
241 Ash hauling
242 Grit hauling
250 Contractual services
Total materials and services
Building and plant:
302 Maintenance of buildings and grounds
303 Janitorial supplies and services
304 Fuel oil incinerator
305 Property rental
306 Electrical usage
307 Natural gas usage
308 Water usage
309 Coal usage
310 Intradistrict service charges (budget purposes only)
Total building and plant

(continued)
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3,475,408
213,032
12,842
7,200
273,515
1,175,242
465,767
18,820
20,476
3,564
2,974
251,542

2014
Budget
(as Approved)
$

3,882,374
252,874
316,351
1,117,692
424,748
24,243
30,903
10,000
3,300
357,500

5,920,382

6,419,985

57,490
38,877
333,240
17,085
11,571
2,541
106,842
7,449
68,873
26,637
722,395
44,248
509
6,634
94,856
17,142
7,549
9,326
2,324
8,240
791,145
342,193

81,500
24,000
286,800
9,700
27,000
3,700
53,900
10,000
78,750
40,500
736,400
53,000
200
5,000
1,200
90,650
22,600
7,750
20,550
3,500
40,000
497,000
263,020

2,717,166

2,356,720

66,463
17,741
11,747
36,271
1,857,396
285,056
138,062
127,128
1,143,880

73,530
14,602
110,000
36,000
2,260,000
362,000
133,000
125,000
1,205,000

3,683,744

4,319,132

Schedule 4

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES COMPARED TO BUDGET (continued)
For the year ended September 30, 2014
2014
Actual (on a
Budgetary
Basis)

Administrative and general:
401
Postage
402
Telephone
403
Office supplies
404
Personal computer supplies
405
Computer parts
406
Printing and reproduction
407
Copier cost
408
Advertising
409
Office equipment maintenance
410
Administrative travel
411
Dues
413
Insurance
414
Education and training cost
415
Books and periodicals
425
Administrative expenses
432
Board members' fees
434
Other contractual
450
Office equipment rental

$

Total administrative and general
Capital
505
508
509
511

848
75,629
8,710
77,983
89,480
3,587
15
13,103
4,000
6,619
31,346
300,021
25,389
2,504
7,182
12,000
2,579

2014
Budget
(as Approved)
$

3,400
67,500
10,800
59,100
85,000
7,650
1,200
16,000
4,000
6,800
28,825
498,466
42,100
4,900
7,800
20,400
400
3,500

660,995

867,841

outlay:
Auxiliary equipment
Instruments and apparatus
Furniture and office equipment
EDP equipment

12,136
28,223
4,973
-

5,000
36,000
3,200
5,000

Total capital outlay

45,332

49,200

$ 13,027,619

$ 14,012,878

Reconciliation of amounts reported on a budgetary basis to amounts reported on an accrual basis (Exhibit B):
Actual - budgetary basis
Intradistrict service charges

$ 13,027,619
(1,143,880)

Total

$ 11,883,739

Amounts per Exhibit B:
Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance
Administrative and general

$ 10,098,895
1,784,844

Total

$ 11,883,739

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the District’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Contents

Tables

Financial Trends
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the District’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.

1-4

Revenue Capacity
This table contains information to help the reader assess the District’s
most significant revenue sources.

5

Debt Capacity
These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability
to issue additional debt in the future.

6-8

Demographic and Economic Information
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities
take place.

9 - 10

Operating Information
These tables contain service and other data to help the reader understand
how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services
the District provides and the activities it performs.

11 - 12

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year. For Tables 5, 11, and 12, the information contained in
those schedules was prepared by the Finance Department from District records.
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Table 1

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year ended
September 30

Net
Investment in
Capital Assets

Restricted

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$ 74,866,599
70,040,338
65,011,415
60,734,932
58,605,000
58,318,918
56,017,828
50,656,141
47,732,051
45,823,640

$ 9,439,800
11,234,876
12,618,160
16,221,618
16,727,064
14,605,854
14,600,946
16,208,198
17,332,629
16,854,272

Note: 2013 amounts have been restated as a result of the
implementation of GASB Statement 65 in 2014.
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Unrestricted
$

15,123,792
16,722,084
17,569,949
15,291,779
13,923,382
13,065,605
11,638,554
10,912,932
7,289,787
9,383,726

Total
$

99,430,191
97,997,298
95,199,524
92,248,329
89,255,446
85,990,377
82,257,328
77,777,271
72,354,467
72,061,638
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2013 amounts have been restated as a result of the
implementation of GASB Statement 65 in 2014.

2.

$ 3,670,512
4,166,774
4,420,890
3,879,962
3,167,506
2,889,544
4,905,570
3,215,069
2,798,492
2,600,490

Investment
Income

Interest expense is net of capitalized amounts.

$ 16,096,126
17,642,557
18,668,975
19,229,486
19,294,201
19,962,690
19,939,835
20,020,713
20,736,749
21,522,131

Operating
Expenses

1.

$ 15,364,422
16,237,129
16,843,795
17,444,754
18,079,837
18,587,481
19,449,540
21,172,366
22,659,968
23,905,534

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

Notes:

Operating
Revenues

Year ended
September 30
$

2,163,091
2,722,773
2,587,995
2,526,733

Interest
Subsidy

$ (4,107,111)
(4,194,239)
(5,393,484)
(5,046,425)
(4,946,025)
(4,779,404)
(10,311,415)
(11,569,552)
(10,410,850)
(7,781,186)

Interest
Expense

Nonoperating
Income (Expense)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT

$

(22,269)

Loss on
Disposal of
Capital Assets

$ (1,168,303)
(1,432,893)
(2,797,774)
(2,951,195)
(2,992,883)
(3,265,069)
(3,733,049)
(4,480,057)
(3,101,144)
(292,829)

Change in
Net Position

Table 2

Table 3

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year ended
September 30
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
(1)

Charges for
Services

(1)

$ 15,321,020
16,142,253
16,810,747
17,391,046
18,038,762
18,433,120
19,362,085
21,120,552
22,595,948
23,832,264

Investment

Interest

Income

Subsidy

$ 3,670,512
4,166,774
4,420,890
3,879,962
3,167,506
2,889,544
4,905,570
3,215,069
2,798,492
2,600,490

Represents operating revenues.
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$

2,163,091
2,722,773
2,587,995
2,526,733

Other

(1)

$ 43,402
94,876
33,048
53,708
41,075
154,361
87,455
51,814
64,020
73,270

Total
$ 19,034,934
20,403,903
21,264,685
21,324,716
21,247,343
21,477,025
26,518,201
27,110,208
28,046,455
29,032,757

Table 4

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
OPERATING EXPENSES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year ended
September 30

Operation
and
Maintenance

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$ 6,592,043
6,612,538
7,547,249
7,928,388
8,122,360
8,499,287
8,464,396
8,488,212
9,408,525
10,098,895

Administrative
and General
$

1,778,034
1,803,024
1,899,916
2,055,509
1,983,442
2,296,800
2,357,259
1,943,257
1,719,076
1,784,843

Depreciation
and
Amortization

Unbilled
Charges

Total

$ 7,327,461
8,636,298
8,858,998
8,805,026
8,847,704
8,807,120
8,881,549
9,044,005
8,942,509
8,875,073

$ 398,588
590,697
362,812
440,563
340,695
359,483
236,631
545,239
666,639
763,320

$ 16,096,126
17,642,557
18,668,975
19,229,486
19,294,201
19,962,690
19,939,835
20,020,713
20,736,749
21,522,131

Note: 2013 amounts have been restated as a result of the
implementation of GASB Statement 65 in 2014.
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Municipality

2014

3,520.9400
25.5111
4,979,672

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($) (1)

140,401
4,422,632
22,595,948

23,832,264

13,726.5700
100.0000
18,173,316

777.7000
5.6659
-

16.3100
0.1188
103,248

9.6300
0.0702
81,468

544.8100
3.9690
788,860

599.9100
4.3704
932,728

0.0000
68,908

16.3100
0.1188
99,532

523.7700
3.8157
770,764

1,170.7600
8.5291
1,621,312

1,058.6100
7.7121
1,496,408

3,073.9600
22.3942
4,145,064

1,384.4000
10.0855
1,893,288

1,541.0400
11.2267
2,117,796

141,792
4,608,240

13,801.6100
100.0000
19,224,024

773.8200
5.6069
-

6.4500
0.0467
91,760

2013
3,009.3600
21.9236
4,053,940

2012

21,120,552

139,055
3,963,068

17,562.8000
100.0000
17,157,484

998.6200
5.6862
-

27.0000
0.1537
96,792

7.3800
0.0420
67,512

710.5100
4.0455
755,476

657.3600
3.7429
736,952

0.0000
60,388

19.3300
0.1101
88,244

692.0400
3.9404
746,844

1,597.6900
9.0970
1,648,456

1,417.9600
8.0737
1,475,204

3,508.7400
19.9782
3,532,560

2,146.6200
12.2225
2,151,028

1,830.2200
10.4210
1,866,800

3,949.3300
22.4868
3,931,228

2011

19,362,085

125,687
3,170,965

22,918.5300
100.0000
16,191,120

1,309.8000
5.7151
-

38.1200
0.1663
97,620

6.9400
0.0303
64,740

1,016.3200
4.4345
776,632

731.0600
3.1898
652,344

0.0000
59,901

58.3400
0.2546
108,976

866.9300
3.7827
680,932

1,980.1200
8.6398
1,458,408

1,846.0300
8.0547
1,388,552

4,421.1700
19.2908
3,200,428

3,153.9400
13.7615
2,274,848

2,388.9600
10.4237
1,760,484

5,100.8000
22.2562
3,667,255

2010

18,433,120

99,944
2,548,572

18,831.9300
100.0000
15,884,548

1,056.5000
5.6099
-

32.5200
0.1727
91,772

8.6200
0.0458
63,096

920.0300
4.8855
830,520

687.5300
3.6509
718,812

137.6000
0.7307
179,028

69.8600
0.3710
122,624

568.0600
3.0165
545,984

1,414.1800
7.5095
1,248,684

1,601.6800
8.5051
1,432,240

3,609.9400
19.1693
3,122,552

2,479.4600
13.1663
2,137,516

2,016.6600
10.7087
1,770,536

4,229.2900
22.4581
3,621,184

2009
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2008

96,079
2,450,014
17,391,046

18,038,762

16,250.0500
100.0000
14,941,032

885.2000
5.4474
-

10.4800
0.0645
65,728

12.7500
0.0784
59,364

821.1000
5.0529
807,752

718.5500
4.4219
787,840

130.6400
0.8039
173,220

20.1100
0.1238
74,204

607.4600
3.7382
624,604

960.1100
5.9084
942,176

1,415.0700
8.7081
1,372,832

3,453.4100
21.2517
3,233,164

2,007.9600
12.3566
1,895,224

1,567.1300
9.6438
1,520,212

3,640.0800
22.4004
3,384,712

97,804
2,494,002

16,637.7100
100.0000
15,544,760

954.6400
5.7378
-

18.9600
0.1139
72,956

11.8800
0.0714
57,856

845.7900
5.0836
846,360

674.9600
4.0568
764,356

130.4500
0.7841
174,980

50.9300
0.3061
102,088

468.8600
2.8181
509,280

1,266.8900
7.6146
1,240,552

1,430.1300
8.5957
1,431,408

3,438.5700
20.6673
3,292,020

2,111.2300
12.6894
2,030,432

1,336.6700
8.034
1,327,492

3,897.7500
23.4272
3,694,980

(1) Includes Unity Village.
(2) Middle Big Creek Subdistrict user charges are based on monthly connections to the treatment system at $32.50 per connection.
(3) Represents average flows.

User charge ($)

Total:

Connections (#)
User charge ($) (2)

Middle Big Creek Subdistrict:

Flow (MG) (3)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Subtotal:

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($) (2)

Middle Big Creek Subdistrict:

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Sugar Creek:

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Fort Osage School:
8.1100
0.0588
81,700

573.0100
4.1518
867,740

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Raymore:

626.2000
4.5371
1,019,184

0.0000
70,544

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Lake City:

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Unincorporated Jackson County:

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Lake Tapawingo:
14.8400
0.1075
100,204

459.4700
3.3291
720,864

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Belton:

1,125.6900
8.1562
1,640,772

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Grandview:

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Blue Springs:

Lee's Summit:

1,038.5900
7.5251
1,544,964

1,427.1600
10.3405
2,051,524

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Raytown:

1,350.4100
9.7844
1,967,984

2,876.9200
20.8448
4,087,112

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Kansas City:

Flow (MG)
Percentage (%)
User charge ($)

Independence:

USER CHARGES AND OPERATING STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT

2007

16,810,747

93,106
2,374,203

15,063.2300
100.0000
14,436,544

821.7100
5.4551
-

6.0500
0.0402
47,456

12.6200
0.0838
45,204

710.4200
4.7163
734,652

695.3900
4.6164
791,204

125.8900
0.8357
158,508

18.7700
0.1246
59,064

790.5600
5.2483
817,204

762.3600
5.0611
790,612

1,341.2300
8.9040
1,386,364

3,312.5400
21.9909
3,237,472

1,864.3600
12.3769
1,847,564

1,413.3600
9.3828
1,415,656

3,187.9700
21.1639
3,105,584

2006

16,142,253

89,862
2,291,481

17,568.9000
100.0000
13,850,772

955.0400
5.4359
-

4.3300
0.0246
43,936

12.0700
0.0687
42,056

782.4700
4.4537
669,988

703.6300
4.005
673,324

133.4600
0.7596
142,344

18.1500
0.1033
54,432

1079.2700
6.1431
904,004

862.8600
4.9113
740,960

1,538.5200
8.7571
1,310,208

3,995.1800
22.7401
3,207,908

2,236.6400
12.7307
1,819,208

1,673.0500
9.5228
1,375,412

3,574.2300
20.3441
2,866,992

15,321,020

84,312
2,149,956

16,505.9300
100.0000
13,171,064

860.3600
5.2127
-

4.3300
0.0262
41,896

10.8300
0.0656
40,388

684.0300
4.1441
597,668

614.0500
3.7202
595,432

125.1600
0.7583
134,956

23.6600
0.1433
56,736

856.9900
5.1920
737,416

965.1600
5.8473
830,788

1,529.8200
9.2683
1,275,292

3,932.8100
23.8266
3,180,928

2,035.1400
12.3297
1,677,360

1,562.4500
9.4660
1,327,724

3,301.1400
19.9997
2,674,480

2005

Table 5

Table 6

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT - DISTRICT
TOTAL OUTSTANDING DEBT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

District
Year ended
September 30

Outstanding
Revenue Bonds

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$ 100,367,211
98,265,515
95,573,818
92,832,122
89,315,425
85,543,729
198,392,032
195,525,336
192,158,639
188,086,943

Notes:

Population
Served
309,381
317,523
322,235
326,160
330,524
338,450
344,358
347,220
354,200
356,979

Per
Capita

Total
Outstanding
Debt

$ 324
309
297
285
270
253
576
563
543
527

$ 109,756,636
107,014,042
103,641,447
100,188,853
95,921,259
91,353,665
207,738,808
210,546,378
215,277,064
212,256,740

1. As a measure of the District's debt per capita, the estimated population
served by its fourteen customer entities is presented above.
2. The revenue bonds above, including unamortized premiums, are for the
District only.
3. 2011 includes a $118,350,000 revenue bond issue.
4. No debt to personal income ratio is shown as it is not available for the
District's service area.
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Table 6A

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT - SUBDISTRICT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year ended
September 30
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

Notes:

Outstanding
Revenue Bonds
$

Number of
Connections

9,389,425
8,748,527
8,067,629
7,356,731
6,605,834
5,809,936
9,346,776
15,021,042
23,118,425
24,169,797

7,255
7,649
7,862
8,106
8,154
8,411
11,522
11,718
11,756
11,884

Per
Connection
$

1. The number of connections represents those within the
service areas of the Subdistrict's seven customer entities.
2. The revenue bonds above, including unamortized premiums,
are for the Subdistrict only.
3. No debt to personal income ratio is shown as it is not
available for the Subdistrict's service area.
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1,294
1,144
1,026
908
810
691
811
1,282
1,967
2,034

(3)

134%

133%

143%

133%

$ 11,902,233

116%

140%

152%

140%

$ 11,146,708

$ 16,252,215

11,794,240

12,647,058

$ 16,385,699

$ 28,046,455

$ 29,032,757

2013

207%

143%

157%

143%

$ 10,545,824

$ 16,133,500

10,976,708

$ 27,110,208

2012

134%

139%

153%

139%

$ 10,551,757

$ 15,449,915

11,058,286

$ 26,508,201

2011

-

-

121%

115%

$ 8,953,091

$ 10,321,455

11,155,570

$ 21,477,025

2010

-

-

132%

123%

$ 8,813,751

$ 10,800,846

10,446,497

$ 21,247,343

2009

-

-

151%

134%

$ 8,120,006

$ 10,900,256

10,424,460

$ 21,324,716

2008

-

-

160%

141%

$ 8,147,640

$ 11,454,708

9,809,977

$ 21,264,685

2007

-

-

173%

150%

$ 7,586,261

$11,397,644

9,006,259

$20,403,903

2006

2005

Direct operating expense includes operation and maintenance expenses, administrative and general expenses, unbilled charges and
other operating expenses.

The 2010 Series bond resolution excludes the interest paid from the Capitalized Interest Subaccount from the debt service requirement.

Gross revenue and the debt service requirements exclude the interest income on the 2003 Series bond issue reserve fund as it is not
a part of the revenue bond coverage.

Revenue for the 2010 Series includes the interest subsidy on these Build America Bonds.

The 2011A Series is based on Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict balances, and include the Pleasant Hill plant purchase payments as an expense.

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)
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Gross revenue includes operating revenues, other operating income and investment income.

(1)

-

-

146%

136%

$ 7,532,123

$ 10,266,269

8,768,665

$ 19,034,934

Note: The revenue bond coverage requirements are 110% for 1995, 2003 and 2011A series issues, and 100% for the 2004 and 2010 series issues.

(6)

(5)

2010 Series

2011A Series

(4)

2003 Series

Coverage:
1995 and 2004 Series

Principal and interest

Debt service requirements -

Net revenue available
for debt service

Gross revenue ⁽¹⁾
Direct operating expense ⁽²⁾

2014

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT

Table 7

Table 8

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE TO
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year ended
September 30

Principal

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$ 2,455,000
2,585,000
3,215,000
3,295,000
4,110,000
4,410,000
6,180,000
3,595,000
4,355,000
5,265,000

Interest

(2)

$ 5,077,123
5,001,261
4,932,640
4,825,006
4,703,751
4,543,091
4,371,757
4,233,582
4,874,097
2,139,105

Total Debt
Service

Total
General
Expenses (1)

Ratio of
Debt
Service to
Total
General
Expenses

$ 7,532,123
7,586,261
8,147,640
8,120,006
8,813,751
8,953,091
10,551,757
7,828,582
9,229,097
7,404,105

$ 8,370,077
8,415,562
9,447,165
9,983,897
10,105,802
10,796,087
10,821,655
10,431,469
11,127,601
11,883,738

89.99
90.15
86.24
81.33
87.21
82.93
97.51
75.05
82.94
62.30

(1)

General expenses represent operation and maintenance expenses
and administrative and general expenses as reflected on Exhibit B.

(2)

Excludes amortization of bond premiums, the deferred amount on
refunding, capitalized interest and the capitalized interest on
the 2010 series bonds payable from bond proceeds.

66

Table 9

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

Population By Customer Entities
2014

2013

Population
Served

Customer

Total
Population

2012

Population
Served

Total
Population

Population
Served

Total
Population

Belton

14,836

23,175

14,639

23,244

14,442

23,251

Blue Springs

28,215

53,294

27,841

53,014

27,467

52,749

Cass County

942

100,641

956

100,376

971

100,052

Grandview

23,837

25,307

23,725

24,601

23,612

24,555

Greenwood

5,387

5,387

5,306

5,306

5,239

5,239

86,700

117,240

86,150

117,270

81,200

117,213

7,454

679,996

6,990

677,377

6,527

676,360
463,202

Independence
Jackson County
Kansas City

34,875

467,007

34,798

464,310

34,722

Lake Tapawingo

729

729

729

729

732

732

Lake Winnebago

1,143

1,143

1,130

1,130

1,139

1,139

93,184

93,184

92,468

92,468

91,668

91,668

7,161

8,218

7,154

8,179

7,273

8,161

Raymore

19,754

19,754

19,550

19,550

19,318

19,318

Raytown

Lee's Summit
Pleasant Hill

29,510

29,510

29,513

29,513

29,622

29,622

Sugar Creek

3,172

3,339

3,174

3,341

3,188

3,356

Unity Village

80

80

77

77

100

100

356,979

1,628,004

354,200

1,620,485

347,220

1,616,717

Total

Personal Income
In Thous ands
Jackson County
Cass County

$ 27,588,109
3,692,699

Per Capita
$

In Thous ands

40,728

$ 27,435,693

36,789

3,526,189

Per Capita
$

In Thous ands

40,564

$ 26,684,628

35,244

3,442,269

Unemployment Rate
2014

2013

2012

Jackson County

7.6%

7.1%

7.0%

Cass County

6.0%

5.4%

5.8%

Notes:

Personal income and unemployment information are provided for the counties in the
service area.
The information above is not available for years prior to 2006 in this format.

Sources:

Mid-America Regional Council, Missouri Department of Economic Development, and HDR
Engineers for the estimated population served. The estimated population and population served
amounts were revised in 2010 and 2011.

(continued)
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Per Capita
$

39,536
34,514

Table 9

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
(continued)

Population By Customer Entities
2011
Customer

2010

Population
Served

Total
Population

2009

Population
Served

Total
Population

Population
Served

Total
Population

Belton

14,246

23,116

14,049

24,802

14,901

24,591

Blue Springs

27,093

52,575

26,719

55,817

35,565

55,698

Cass County

985

99,478

1,000

100,184

1,789

98,429

Grandview

23,500

24,475

23,388

24,718

23,579

24,033

Greenwood

5,221

5,221

5,475

5,475

4,649

4,649

80,100

116,830

79,000

121,180

82,661

121,212

6,063

674,158

5,600

705,708

12,881

668,417
480,129

Independence
Jackson County
Kansas City

34,645

459,787

34,569

482,299

34,520

Lake Tapawingo

730

730

844

844

786

786

Lake Winnebago

1,131

1,131

1,118

1,118

1,139

1,139

91,364

91,364

93,176

93,176

84,208

84,208

7,271

8,107

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Raymore

19,206

19,206

19,897

19,897

8,214

17,703

Raytown

Lee's Summit
Pleasant Hill

29,526

29,526

30,000

30,000

22,673

28,194

Sugar Creek

3,178

3,345

3,477

3,652

2,845

3,533

Unity Village

99

99

138

138

114

114

344,358

1,609,148

338,450

1,669,008

330,524

1,612,835

Total

Personal Income
In Thous ands
Jackson County
Cass County

$ 26,152,339
3,390,257

Per Capita
$

In Thous ands

37,058

$ 25,800,661

33,840

3,306,047

Per Capita
$

In Thous ands

36,821

$ 24,921,259

33,300

3,166,658

Unemployment Rate
2011

2010

2009

Jackson County

9.8%

10.8%

11.0%

Cass County

8.6%

9.1%

9.7%

(continued)
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Per Capita
$

37,284
32,172

Table 9

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
(continued)

Population By Customer Entities
2008
Customer

2007

Population
Served

Total
Population

2006

Population
Served

Total
Population

Population
Served

Total
Population

Belton

14,633

24,436

14,365

24,124

14,097

24,018

Blue Springs

34,968

55,031

34,371

53,885

33,775

53,228

Cass County

1,789

97,133

1,789

95,781

1,789

93,752

Grandview

23,372

24,116

23,163

24,373

22,956

24,588

Greenwood

4,638

4,638

4,558

4,558

4,505

4,505

Independence

81,647

110,704

80,635

109,400

79,621

110,039

Jackson County

12,628

666,890

12,375

664,078

12,122

662,133

Kansas City

444,314

34,303

450,375

34,086

447,306

33,869

Lake Tapawingo

789

789

801

801

808

808

Lake Winnebago

1,114

1,114

1,102

1,102

1,059

1,059

82,820

82,820

81,913

81,913

80,230

80,230

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Raymore

7,931

17,238

7,650

16,544

7,367

15,455

Raytown

Lee's Summit
Pleasant Hill

22,583

28,328

22,492

28,557

22,403

28,883

Sugar Creek

2,831

3,543

2,819

3,544

2,805

3,593

Unity Village

114

114

116

116

117

117

326,160

1,567,269

322,235

1,556,082

317,523

1,546,722

Total

Personal Income
In Thous ands
Jackson County
Cass County

$ 24,140,084
3,033,949

Per Capita
$

In Thous ands

36,198

$ 22,971,786

31,235

2,854,178

Per Capita
$

34,592

$ 22,237,737

29,799

2,712,433

Unemployment Rate
2008

2007

2006

Jackson County

7.3%

5.9%

6.0%

Cass County

6.3%

4.9%

4.7%
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Per Capita

In Thous ands
$

33,585
28,932

Table 10

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Employer

Employees

Alliant Techsystems Inc.
Lee's Summit School District
Independence School District
Blue Springs School District
Centerpoint Medical Center
Truman Medical Center-Lakewood
National Benefits Center
Raytown School District
City of Independence, MO
St. Luke's East

Percentage
of Total

2,199
2,000
2,000
1,613
1,600
1,374
1,325
1,293
950
941
15,295

.72%
.65%
.65%
.53%
.52%
.45%
.43%
.42%
.31%
.31%
4.99%

Notes:

The principal employers above are located within the boundaries of the primary
customer entities of the District's service area. The percentage of total is based
on Jackson County, Missouri. The information for principal employers nine years
ago is currently not available.

Sources:

Mid-America Regional Council and various economic development entities.

70

Table 11
LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT
OPERATING INFORMATION

Year ended
September 30

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

Number of Employees
Operation and
Administrative
Maintenance

Millions of Gallons
of Sewage Treated
District
17,207
17,452
11,676
16,452
17,341
17,042
18,884
13,177
12,568
15,222
12,852

Subdistrict
342
306

Year organized
Land area serviced

10
10
11
11
11
11
10
10
11
9
9

45
47
48
48
46
46
48
47
50
49
52

District
1968

Subdistrict
1992

278 square miles

110 square miles

Treatment capacity:
Dry weather flows
Wet weather flows

52 MGD
400 MGD

2.25 MGD
7.75 MGD

83

17

8-126 inches

12-42 inches

Miles of roads maintained

34

2

Number of metering structures

37

3

Miles of interceptor, trunk sewer and
connection lines
Pipe dimensions

Lakes and federal installations:
Blue Springs Lake
Longview Lake
Lake City Arsenal
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Liberty Mutual Insurance Co.
Allied World Assurance Co.

Commercial property and liability:

Hartford Insurance Company
American Bankers Insurance Co.
National Casualty

Depositor's forgery bond

Flood insurance

Umbrella

Liberty Mutual Insurance Co.
Allied World Assurance Co.

Commercial property and liability:

Darwin National Assurance Co.
American Bankers Insurance Co.
National Casualty

Public officials and employment
practices

Flood insurance

Umbrella

Property and multi-peril, general
and excess liability, property
special form (includes boiler
and machinery)

Missouri Employers Mutual Insurance

Workers' compensation

Middle Big Creek Sewer Subdistrict:

Darwin National Assurance Co.

Public officials and employment
practices

Property and multi-peril, general
and excess liability, property
special form (includes boiler
and machinery)

Missouri Employers Mutual Insurance

Name of Company

Workers' compensation

Little Blue Valley Sewer District:

Type of Coverage
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XCO0000353

Various

02021748

YU2L9L452625014
51051435

0207699-10

XCO0000353

60039187752013

37BPEAQ5488

02021748

YU2L9L452625014
51051435

0207699-10

Policy Number

09-01-14

02-13-14

09-01-14

09-01-14

09-01-14

09-01-14

02-12-14

09-01-13

09-01-14

09-01-14

09-01-14

09-01-15

02-13-15

09-01-15

09-01-15

09-01-15

09-01-15

02-12-15

09-01-16

09-01-15

09-01-15

09-01-15

Policy Period
From
To

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE
September 30, 2014

LITTLE BLUE VALLEY SEWER DISTRICT

$235,700 building and
$155,200 contents
$10,000,000 each occurrence
$10,000,000 aggregate

$2,000,000 policy limit

$17,992,974 property limit
General liability: $1,000,000
each occurrence, $3,000,000
aggregate; $1,000,000 CSL auto

$500,000 each occurrence
and aggregate

$10,000,000 each occurrence
$10,000,000 aggregate

$500,000 building
$500,000 contents

$500,000

$2,000,000 policy limit

$99,315,899 property limit;
General liability: $1,000,000
each occurrence, $3,000,000
aggregate; $1,000,000 CSL auto

$500,000 each occurrence
and aggregate

Limits of Coverage

$

4,025

11,958

1,888

14,529

6,775

34,031

6,327

2,614

15,967

122,852

101,632

Premium

Table 12

